
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA 

FEBRUARY 18, 2013 



Table of Contents

Agenda 2
Public Hearing and Action:

12-26 Case Analysis 4
Award Bid for Maple Park Expansion Phase 1 and authorize
County Manager to sign Contract

Maple Park Expansion Phase I-Award Rec. 13
Consideration of License Agreement

19Agreement 
Appointment to Tourism Board

Tourism Board 34
Appointment to Recreation Board

Recreation Board 35
Appointment to Board of Adjustment

Board of Adjustment Form 36
Approval of Resolution supporting continued funding for the
Museum of the Albemarle

Resolution 37
Department of Social Service request to purge certain files

39Files
Approval of January 22 and February 4, 2013, Minutes

January 22 Minutes 40
February 4 Minutes 67

Resolution Approving Water Shortage Response Plan
81Resolution 

Water Plan 82
Approval of Quarterly Fiscal Monitoring Report for East Carolina
Behavioral Health

Report 87
Resolution to declare Sheriff vehicles as surplus

Surplus resolution 88
Budget Amendments

Budget Amendments 89
Project Ordinance - Crawford Fire Station Addition

Project Ordinance 101

1



Document last changed: 2/20/2013 10:55 AM 

 

REVISED 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, February 18, 2013 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

Work Sessions 
 
5:00 p.m. NC Cooperative Extension annual Report to the People  
 
7:00 pm Call to Order 
 

A) Invocation 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 
C) Approval of Agenda 
D) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; 
please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

 
Public Hearings 
 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-26 Currituck County:  Request to 
amend to the Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 4: Use Standards, 
Chapter 5: Development Standards, and Chapter 10: Definitions and 
Measurement, to clarify waste related uses. 

Administrative Reports 
 

A) Award Bid for Maple Park Expansion Phase 1 and authorize County 
Manager to sign Contract  

B) Consideration of License Agreement between County of Currituck and 
Whalehead Preservation Trust and Currituck County Wildlife Museum for 
the operation of the Whalehead Club at Heritage Park 

New Business 

dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text
2



Document last changed: 2/20/2013 10:55 AM 

 
 

A) Board Appointments: 
1. Appointment to Recreation Board 
2. Appointment to Board of Adjustment 
3. Appointment to Tourism Board 
4. Appointment to Moyock Small Area Plan Committee 

B) Consent Agenda: 
1. Approval of January 22 and February 4, 2013, Minutes 
2. Resolution Approving Water Shortage Response Plan 
3. Approval of Quarterly Fiscal Monitoring Report for East Carolina 

Behavioral Health 
4. Resolution to declare Sheriff vehicles as surplus 
5. Department of Social Service request to purge certain files 
6. Approval of Resolution supporting continued funding for the 

Museum of the Albemarle 
7. Budget Amendments 
8. Project Ordinance - Crawford Fire Station Addition 

C) Commissioner’s Report 
D) County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

dembrey
Typewritten Text
3



 
         

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 
 
 

To:   Board of Commissioners  
 
From: Planning Staff 
  
Date: February 11, 2013 
 
Subject: PB 12-26 Waste Related Uses Text Amendment 
 
 
The definitions and use standards below have been prepared by staff in order to clarify waste 
related uses in the new Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).  This proposal would split the 
current uses of ‘Recycling Center’ and ‘Salvage and Junk Yard’ into four separate uses: ‘Recycling 
Center, Processing’, ‘Recycling Center, Transfer’, ‘Salvage Yard’, and ‘Junk Yard’.   
 
This proposal also modifies to the Use Table, creates/modifies the use standards for each of the 
four proposed uses, and updates the parking standards.  Staff used other zoning ordinances, the 
North Carolina General Statutes, and discussion with Bissell Professional Group, to create the 
definitions and standards.  
 
Currently, the UDO may classify ‘Recycling Centers’ as a ‘Salvage and Junk Yard’. 
 
Staff presented this proposal at the December Planning Board meeting and is now bringing it 
forward as a formal text amendment application to the new UDO. 
 
The Planning Board recommended approval at their January 8, 2013 meeting as written, but with 
a change to 6(D) from a fully enclosed building to a 3-sided building. Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 
 

 

Currituck County 
Waste Related Uses Text Amendment 

Page 1 of 9 
 

4



PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (1-8-13) 
Mr. Klebitz stated he is here in the interest of the citizens and someone who has worked with staff 
through this process in rewriting these new standards and definitions. Mr. Klebitz talked about the 
concerns he has with the language which is being presented in the packet.  Mr. Klebitz talked 
about the definitions of a junk yard, salvage yard, recycling center, processing, and recycling 
center, transfer. Mr. Klebitz stated a salvage yard, recycling center, processing, and recycling 
center, transfer are limited to recyclable or recoverable materials; where as a junk yard handles 
junk or recoverable materials. Mr. Klebitz stated he thinks a salvage yard should be included in 
the language of junk. Mr. Klebitz talked about the standards for recycling center, transfer, 
specifically requiring the building to be fully enclosed.  
 
Mr. Schaubach provided pictures of what a typical transfer station looks like. Mr. Schaubach is 
concerned with the language that the transfer station be fully enclosed. Mr. Schaubach provided 
an overview of what happens at a transfer station. Mr. Schaubach stated a door of this size will 
cost him approximately $80,000 and does not see a need for one since it would remain open all 
day.  
 
Mr. Schuler provided an explanation of why the building would need to be fully enclosed, and 
explained if the board wanted to allow for 3-sided buildings then staff recommends permitting 
the transfer stations with a use permit. 
 
The Planning Board discussed a 3-sided building vs. a fully enclosed building, screening 
requirements, this request would be county wide, light vs. heavy manufacturing, and setbacks.   
 
Mr. Klebitz stated that a fully enclosed industrial building may require a sprinkle system.  
 
Mr. Schaubach stated a processing center would be fully enclosed, but not a transfer station. 
 
Ms. Bell asked what is involved in a special use permit. 
 
Mr. Schuler provided an overview. 
 
Mr. Schaubach stated a use permit would not be an option for him. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Cooper moved to approve PB 12-26 as written but with a change to 6(D) from a fully 
enclosed building to a 3-sided building. Ms. Newbern seconded the motion. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Currituck County 
Waste Related Uses Text Amendment 

Page 2 of 9 
 

5



 
 

PB 12-26 
UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 

 
Amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 4: Use Standards, Chapter 5: 
Development Standards, and Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement to clarify waste related 
uses.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
 
Item 1: That Table 4.1.1 Summary Use Table is amended by adding the following underlined 
language, deleting the strikethrough language, and renumbering accordingly: 
 

TTAABBLLEE  44..11..11::  SSUUMMMMAARRYY  UUSSEE  TTAABBLLEE  
PROPOSED UDO PROCEDURE: Z = Zoning Compliance Permit;      U = Use Permit;      MP = Allowed with Master Plan;       blank cell = 

Prohibited 

USE 

CATEGORY 
USE TYPE 

ZONING DISTRICT (CURRENT DISTRICT IN PARENTHESIS)  
[NOTE: OVERLAY OR SUB-DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS MAY FURTHER LIMIT USES] 

AD
D

IT
IO

N
AL

 R
EQ

. 
(4

.2
._

__
) 

RC
  

AG
  

SF
M

  

SF
O

  

SF
R 

 

SF
I 

M
XR

  

GB
  

LB
  

CC
 

VC
 

LI
  

H
I  

PD
-R

 

PD
-M

 

PD
-O

 

INDUSTRIAL USE CLASSIFICATION 

W
as

te
-R

el
at

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Incinerator             U    5.E.1 

Junk Yard             U    5.E.2 

Landfill, land clearing and inert 
debris or construction debris             U U    5.E.3 

Public convenience center/transfer 
station  

 U U U U U U U U   U U    5.E.4 

Recycling center            Z Z    5.E.5 

Recycling center, processing             Z    5.E.5 

Recycling center, transfer             Z Z    5.E.6 

Salvage and junkyard Yard             U    5.E.7 

Waste composting  U          U U     

 
Item 2: That Section 4.2.5 Industrial Uses is amended by adding the following underlined 
language and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 

E.  Waste-Related Services 

(2) Junk Yard 
A junkyard yard shall: 

(a)  Not be placed within 1,000 feet of a residential zoning 
district, lot with a school, lot with a day care center, or a 
major arterial street right-of-way. 

Currituck County 
Waste Related Uses Text Amendment 

Page 3 of 9 
 

6



(b)  Be screened in accordance with Section 4.3.3.P, Outdoor 
Storage (other than boats or vehicles). 

(c)   Not burn non-vegetative matter. 

(d)  Not engage in open dumping, disposal of toxic or 
hazardous matter, or stock piling of tires or batteries. 

(e)  Ensure that disposal of garbage unrelated to motor vehicles 
is in an approved container that is regularly maintained. 

(f)   Ensure drainage is adequate in order to prevent standing 
water. 

(g)  Not allow weeds or other vegetation to exceed a height of 
12 inches. 

(h)  Ensure junk vehicles are arranged to permit easy access 
firefighting purpose. 

(i)  Any lot with vehicles stored without current registration 
plates or having an amount of trash, either burnable or 
non-burnable, considered as excessive in the judgment of 
the administrator, shall be classified as a junk yard and will 
require the appropriate zoning and permits.  

(5)  Recycling Center, Processing 
A recycling center, processing shall comply with the following standards: 

(a) The center shall be on a parcel with an area of at least five 
acres. 

(b) The center shall be located at least 250 feet from any 
residential district, schools, child care center, or major 
arterial street right-of-way. 

(c) Except for a freestanding office, no part of the center shall 
be located within 50 feet of any property line.  

(d)  All processing of recyclable materials shall occur within a 
fully enclosed building. 

(d e) Recyclable materials stored outside shall be contained 
within a leak-proof bin or trailer, and not stored on the 
ground.  

(e) Only limited sorting, separation, or other processing of 
deposited materials shall occur on the site.  

Currituck County 
Waste Related Uses Text Amendment 

Page 4 of 9 
 

7



(f) There shall be no collection or storage of hazardous or 
biodegradable wastes on the site.  

 (6)  Recycling Center, Transfer 
A recycling center, transfer shall comply with the following standards: 

(a) The center shall be on a parcel with an area of at least five 
acres. 

(b) The center shall be located at least 250 feet from any 
residential district, schools, child care center, or major 
arterial street right-of-way. 

(c) Except for a freestanding office, no part of the center shall 
be located within 50 feet of any property line.  

(d)  All recyclable and recoverable materials shall be collected, 
sorted, and prepared for transfer within a fully enclosed 
building.  Processing of the materials by briquetting, 
compacting, flattening, grinding, crushing, shredding, 
cleaning, or altering the materials is prohibited. 

(e) Recyclable or recoverable materials stored outside shall be 
contained within a leak-proof bin or trailer, and not stored 
on the ground.  

(f) There shall be no collection or storage of hazardous or 
biodegradable wastes on the site.  

 

(7) Salvage and junkyard Yard 
A salvage or junkyard yard shall: 

(a)  Not be placed within 1,000 feet of a residential zoning 
district, lot with a school, lot with a day care center, or a 
major arterial street right-of-way. 

(b)  Be screened in accordance with Section 4.3.3.P, Outdoor 
Storage (other than boats or vehicles). 

(c)   Not burn non-vegetative matter. 

(d)  Not engage in open dumping, disposal of toxic or 
hazardous matter, or stock piling of tires or batteries. 

(e)  Ensure that disposal of garbage unrelated to motor vehicles 
is in an approved container that is regularly maintained. 

Currituck County 
Waste Related Uses Text Amendment 

Page 5 of 9 
 

8



(f)   Ensure drainage is adequate in order to prevent standing 
water. 

(g)  Not allow weeds or other vegetation to exceed a height of 
12 inches. 

(h)  Ensure junk vehicles are arranged to permit easy access 
firefighting purpose. 

 
Item 3: That Table 5.1.3.C: Minimum Off-Street Parking Standards is amended by adding the 
following underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 

TTAABBLLEE  55..11..33..CC::    MMIINNIIMMUUMM  OOFFFF--SSTTRREEEETT  PPAARRKKIINNGG  SSTTAANNDDAARRDDSS  

USE CATEGORY USE TYPE 
MINIMUM NUMBER 

OF PARKING SPACES 
INDUSTRIAL USE CLASSIFICATION 

Waste-Related 
Services 

Incinerator See Section 5.1.3.E 

Junk yard 
1 per every 10,000 sf 
of outdoor area 

Landfill, land clearing and inert debris or construction 
debris 

See Section 5.1.3.E 

Public convenience center/transfer station See Section 5.1.3.E 
Recycling center  3 per station 
Recycling center, processing 1 per every 2,500 sf  
Recycling center, transfer 1 per every 2,500 sf  

Salvage and junkyard yard 
1 per every 10,000 sf 
of outdoor area  

Waste composting See Section 5.1.3.E 
 
Item 4: That Section 10.5: Definitions is amended by adding the following underlined language 
and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 
RECYCLING CENTER, PROCESSING 
A facility engaged solely in the storage, processing, resale, or reuse of recyclable and 
recovered materials. 

A facility used for the collection and processing of recyclable and recoverable 
materials.  Processing means the preparation of materials for efficient shipment, or to 
an end-user’s specifications, by such means as briquetting, compacting, chipping, 
flattening, grinding, crushing, sorting, shredding, cleaning, and altering.  A processing 
recycling center does not include salvage or junk yards. 

 
RECYCLING CENTER, TRANSFER 

Currituck County 
Waste Related Uses Text Amendment 

Page 6 of 9 
 

9



A facility which recyclable or recoverable materials are collected, sorted, and prepared 
for transfer to another facility for processing.   A transfer recycling center may not 
process by briquetting, compacting, chipping, flattening, grinding, crushing, 
shredding, cleaning or altering the materials. 
 
SALVAGE AND JUNK YARD 
An establishment where junk, waste, discarded, salvaged, or similar materials such as 
old metals, wood, slush, lumber, glass, paper, rags, cloth, bagging, cordage, barrels, 
containers, and the like, are brought, sold, exchanged, baled, packed, disassembled, 
stored, or handled, including used lumber and building material yards, housewrecking 
yards, heavy equipment wrecking yards, and yards or places where salvaged house 
wrecking or structural steel materials are stored, handled, and sold. This definition 
includes automobile wrecking or automobile wrecking yards and establishments for 
the sale, purchase, or storage of secondhand cars, clothing, salvaged machinery, 
furniture, radios, stoves, refrigerators, or similar household goods and appliances, all 
of which shall be usable, nor shall it apply to the processing of used, discarded, or 
salvaged materials incident to manufacturing activity on the same site where such 
processing occurs. 
 
An establishment primarily engaged in the storage, sale, dismantling or other 
processing of recoverable and recyclable materials which are not intended for reuse in 
their original forms, such as automotive wrecking yards, metal salvage yards, or paper 
salvage yards.   
 
For the purposes of section 7.4, Flood Damage Prevention, any non-residential 
property used for the storage, collection, and/or recycling of any type of equipment, 
and including but not limited to vehicles, appliances and related machinery. 

 
JUNKYARD 
See “Salvage yard or Junkyard”. 
 
JUNK YARD 
An establishment or place of business which is maintained, operated or used for 
storing, keeping, buying or selling junk or recoverable materials. 
 

For the purposes of section 7.4, Flood Damage Prevention, any non-residential 
property used for the storage, collection, and/or recycling of any type of equipment, 
and including but not limited to vehicles, appliances and related machinery. 
 
JUNK 

Currituck County 
Waste Related Uses Text Amendment 

Page 7 of 9 
 

10



Old or scrap copper, brass, rope, rags, batteries, paper, trash, rubber, debris, waste, or 
junked, dismantled or wrecked automobiles, or parts thereof, iron, steel, and other old 
or scrap ferrous or nonferrous material.  Junk does not include materials used for 
recycling purposes as part of an approved recycling center (processing or transfer). 
 
RECYCLABLE MATERIALS 
Materials which are capable of being recycled and which would otherwise be processed 
or disposed of as solid waste. Recyclable materials do not include residential or 
commercial solid waste, hazardous or toxic waste. 
 
RECOVERABLE MATERIALS 
Materials which the majority can be feasibly recycled, and has been diverted or 
removed from solid waste stream for sale, use, or reuse. 
 
Item 5: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 
 
 
Item 6: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day of  
  , 201 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    

Currituck County 
Waste Related Uses Text Amendment 

Page 8 of 9 
 

11



 

 

Currituck County 
Waste Related Uses Text Amendment 

Page 9 of 9 
 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



NORTH CAROLINA 
 
CURRITUCK COUNTY 
 

LICENSE AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
AND 

WHALEHEAD PRESERVATION TRUST AND 
CURRITUCK WILDLIFE MUSEUM  

FOR 
THE OPERATION OF THE WHALEHEAD CLUB AT HERITAGE PARK 

 
  
 THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT made and entered into this _____ day of 

_____________, 2013 by and between COUNTY OF CURRITUCK, NORTH CAROLINA, a 

body corporate and politic existing pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina, (the 

“County”) and WHALEHEAD PERSERVATION TRUST AND CURRITUCK WILDLIFE 

MUSEUM, a North Carolina nonprofit corporation, (the “Trust”). 

RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the County is the owner of the lands and premises known as the Whalehead 

Club at Currituck Heritage Park located at 1100 Club Road, Corolla, North Carolina, ( "Heritage 

Park"); and  

 WHEREAS, the Trust is duly incorporated under the laws of the State of North Carolina 

and has the necessary skills and ability to operate a house museum and heritage park such as 

Heritage Park; and  

 WHEREAS, the County wishes to enter into an agreement with the Trust, under which 

the Trust will continue the management and operation of the Heritage Park, as more fully set out 

and described in this Agreement, the purpose for which, among other things, is: 

1 

 

19



 (1)  to set out the respective obligations of the County as the owner of Heritage  

  Park and the Trust as both the Licensee of the Museum Park and the recipient  

  from the County of the major source of the Trust's funding;  and 

 (2)  ensure the alignment of the objectives of the County and the Trust with   

  respect to Heritage Park.  

 NOW THEREFORE the County and Trust in consideration of the premises, and the 

mutual promises exchanged in this Agreement, agree as follows:  

1 .1  In this Agreement  

 (a)  "Capital Works" means the installment or construction on the Lands of a building 

or structure or the addition or improvement to an existing building or structure on the Lands;  

 (c)  "Hazard" means anything that presents a risk of personal injury or property 

damage to users and persons at or within the Museum Park;  

 (d)  "License" means this Agreement between the Parties as of the date first above 

written granting a License to the Trust to occupy the Museum Park and Lands;  

 (e)  "Heritage Park" means the Whalehead Club at Heritage Park, associated buildings 

and Lands located at 1100 Club Road, Corolla, NC and on lands legally described as:  

  Being that those tracts or parcels of land more particularly described in those  
  deeds recorded in Book 309, Page 184; Book 351, Page 529 and Book 617, Page  
  227 of the Currituck County Registry. 
 
  LESS AND EXCEPT the approximate 3.00 acre tract or parcel of land more  
  particularly described in Exhibit A attached to the Lease Agreement by and  
  between Currituck County and State of North Carolina dated June 14, 2001 and  
  recorded in Book 533, Page 931 of the Currituck County Registry. 
 

(the "Lands");  
2 

 

20



 (f)  "Term" means the term of this Agreement as established under section 3.1.  

 

2.0 Right to Occupy 

 The County, subject to the performance and observance by the Trust of the terms, 

conditions, covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement and to earlier termination as 

provided in this Agreement grants to the Trust, its agents, employees, invitees and other persons 

a non-exclusive right by way of a license to occupy the Land and improvements for the purpose 

of operating Heritage Park.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Trust may issue licenses for persons 

or groups to use or occupy Heritage Park including, but not limited to, weddings, receptions, and 

festivals. 

3.0 Reservation of Rights 

 The County hereby reserves itself from the grant and the covenants made by it to the 

Trust under Section 2.0 above the right for the County, its agents, employees, contractors and 

subcontractors to have full and complete access to the Land to carry out any operations 

associated with the County's use of the Land.  In addition, the Land shall be made freely 

accessible to the public for park and recreation purposes.  The right and permission of the Trust 

under this Agreement is subordinate to the right of the County to use Heritage Park and Lands 

for public purposes upon advance notice and coordination with Trust so as not to conflict with 

the Trust’s scheduled events at Heritage Park or the Land. 

4.0 License Fee 

 In consideration for the right to occupy, the Trust shall pay to County the sum of TEN 

AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($10.00) on the execution of this Agreement and shall further  provide 

to County (1) a bill of sale in form acceptable to County for all personal property acquired by 

3 

 

21



Trust since the Trust began operation and management of Heritage Park and Lands and (2) 

amend the Trust’s Articles of Incorporation to provide that upon dissolution the Trust’s assets, 

except those restricted by terms of gift or loan, shall be distributed to County to be used 

exclusively for public historic preservation and education. 

5.0 Term 

 5.1  The Term of this Agreement shall be for a period of  five (5) years commencing 

on March 1, 2013 and terminating on February 28, 2018, (the "Term").  

6.0  Trust's Services  

 6.1  During the Term, the Trust will manage and operate Heritage Park in accordance 

with the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement.  

 6.2  The Trust will render its services to the County with that degree of care, skill and 

diligence normally provided by the licensees of similar museum facilities elsewhere in the State 

of North Carolina.  

 6.3  The Trust shall manage and operate Heritage Park in a manner that is consistent 

with and to the standards required by County.  

 6.4  The Trust will ensure that all of its employees, Licensees, contractors and 

volunteers are appropriately trained, are familiar with all rules, regulations and bylaws applicable 

to Heritage Park, and are thoroughly familiar with and able to implement all emergency 

procedures as required under this Agreement. The Trust will also ensure that its employees, 

licensees, contractors and volunteers abide by the terms of this Agreement.  

 6.5  Except as specifically provided elsewhere in this Agreement, during the Term the 

Trust will be solely responsible:  

4 

 

22



  (a)  to supply at its sole cost and expense all administration, management,  

   supervision, labor, equipment (including vehicles, material, supplies)  

   carrying out maintenance of Heritage Park, including lawn maintenance,  

   landscaping and repairs or alterations to fences, buildings or structures, in  

   consultation with the County, and other services necessary for the   

   management and operation of Heritage Park in accordance with this  

   Agreement.   

  (b)  for all other operating expenses during the Term, including, without  

   limitation, all utility and similar charges for the use of electric current,  

   natural gas, water, sewer, solid waste removal, telephone services and any  

   other fees or charges for services and utilities which may be assessed or  

   charged in relation to the operation of Heritage Park;  

  (c)  to comply with the requirements of all Federal, State, and County laws  

   applicable to Heritage Park; and  

  (d)  to manage all funds received and disbursed in connection with Heritage  

   Park.   

 6.6 Except where expressly provided elsewhere under this Agreement:  

  (a)  the County shall not be obliged to furnish any services or materials for the  

   management and operation of the Museum Park;  and  

  (b)  the County shall be responsible to carry out Capital Works if approved by  

   the County, in consultation with the Trust.  

 

 

5 

 

23



7.0  Accessibility  

 7.1  The Trust shall ensure that Heritage Park is open and accessible to the general 

public during scheduled hours of operation.  

8.0  Safety and Security  

 8.1  The Trust shall implement and follow procedures for security, public safety, 

public control and emergencies at Heritage Park to the satisfaction of the County.  

 8.2  In the event of an emergency, and where the Trust deems it necessary, Heritage 

Park may be closed to the general public until the Trust determines that it is safe to reopen the 

Heritage Park.  

 8.3  The Trust shall ensure that appropriate and sufficient warning signage is posted 

and maintained, and that information is made available to Heritage Park users, concerning 

Hazards at Heritage Park.   

 8.4  The Trust shall promptly notify the County of any major incidents or accidents at 

Heritage Park.  

 8.5  The County will advise the Trust as soon as possible of incidents occurring at 

Heritage Park.  

9.0 Policies and Procedures 

 9.1  The Trust will establish policies and procedures for the operation and 

management of Heritage Park but those policies and procedures must be consistent with the 

following goals and objectives of the County, subject to budget constraints, namely:  

 (a)  to manage Heritage Park in a professional, responsible manner;  

 (b)  to promote Heritage Park and its activities and to encourage members of the  

 public to use and support it;  

6 

 

24



 (c)  to exercise the principles of sound financial management in the operation and 

 management of Heritage Park;  

 (d)  operate the premises, facilities and archives of Heritage Park;  

 (e)  preserve the historical buildings and artifacts of Heritage Park;  

 (f)  raise money for the furtherance of its purposes by contributions, donations, fees 

 and grants;  

 (g)  proper accessioning of artifacts;  

 (h)  organize special events to be held at Heritage Park;  

 (i)  develop Hertiage Park programs; and  

 (j)  develop and administer a website for Heritage Park.  

10.0  Reporting Requirements  

 10.1  The Trust shall, throughout the Term of this Agreement, provide to the County’s 

Manager or designee:  

 (a)  an annual report by January 1,  that includes:  

  (i)  a financial statement of revenues and expenditures for the year; and 

  (ii) a statement of the cash position of Heritage Park; and  

  (iii)  a statement of the activities and achievements of the previous year in  

   respect of Heritage Park; and  

  (iv)  marketing strategies for Heritage Park; 

 (b) proposed operating and capital budgets by May 1;  

 (c)  minutes of all meetings of the Licensee's Board, prepared promptly following  

  those Board meetings and sent to the County; and  

 (d)  any other information that may be requested by the County from time to time. 

7 

 

25



11.0  Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws  

 11.1  The Trust shall not amend its Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws without at least 

30 days' prior written notice to the County. Such amendments shall not be inconsistent with the 

Terms of this Agreement.  

12.0 Standards 

  12.1  The Trust shall not undertake any Capital Works in respect of Heritage Park 

without the prior written consent of the County.  

 12.2  All Capital Works and any other improvements placed at Heritage Park shall 

become and remain the property of the County.   

13.0  Management  

 13.1  The Trust shall hire, train, manage, supervise (including discipline and 

termination) all personnel necessary for the management and supervision of the day to day 

operation of Heritage Park.  

 13.2  The Trust shall if requested, under the direction of the County, conduct a review 

of Heritage Park operations and of the Trust's services. That review shall include a risk 

assessment of Heritage Park and the Trust's operations and programs in or at Heritage Park. The 

Licensee shall implement any changes in management, operational or maintenance practices or 

standards reasonably requested by the County following such review.  

14.0  Sources and Disposition of Revenues  

 14.1  In consideration of the services provided by the Licensee under this Agreement, 

the Trust shall be entitled to retain all user fees charged and collected by the Trust for the use of 

Heritage Park.   

8 

 

26



 14.2  The amount, if any, of County operating funds provided to the Trust for the cost 

of operation of Heritage Park is in the sole discretion of the County’s governing board and will 

be determined annually at the same time the County establishes its budget for the ensuing year. 

 14.3  The Trust may conduct its own fundraising to assist it to fund special projects for 

Heritage Park or if the Trust determines that it requires funding to supplement the revenues from 

the user fees under section 14.1 and operational funding provided by the County under section 

14.2.  

15.0  Spending Authority, Financial Accountability and Recordkeeping  

 15.1  The Trust's annual budget, when approved by its Board of Directors and the 

County’s governing board, is the source of the Trust's authority to make expenditures in relation 

to the Museum Park.  

  15.2  The Trust must notify the County in a timely manner of any unplanned over-

expenditures in excess of those contained in the Trust's annual budget under section 15.1, and 

must include the Trust's proposal for corrective measures.  

 15.3  The Trust shall, throughout the term of the Agreement, maintain accurate records, 

to a standard or in such form as would normally be kept by a prudent corporation, of all 

maintenance and repair activities undertaken by the Trust.  

 15.4  During the Term, the Trust shall keep and maintain accurate financial and 

accounting records in a form that is in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 

of all revenue and expenditures in relation to the management, maintenance and operations of 

Heritage Park.  

 15.5 The books, accounts, financial records and other records of the Trust with respect 

to the matters referred to in sections 14.4 and 14.5 shall be open for audit and inspection by the 

9 

 

27



County and its auditors upon 24 hours' notice to the Trust during regular business hours, and the 

County and its auditors may take copies and extracts.  

16.0 Insurance 

 16.1  During the Term, the Trust shall if required by the County, at its sole expense, 

obtain and maintain in force general public liability insurance against claims for personal injury, 

death and property damage arising out of the management and operation of Heritage Park, in an 

amount not less than One Million ($1,000,000) Dollars per single occurrence, and will include 

the County as an additional insured on the policy of insurance and provide the County with a 

certified copy of such policy or policies.  

 16.2  The Trust shall throughout the Term, at its sole expense, maintain such insurance 

over vehicles (owned and non-owned) used in Heritage Park operations as is required under 

North Carolina law, with liability limits of One Million ($1,000,000) Dollars.   

 16.3  During the Term, the Trust shall if required by the County, at its sole expense, 

maintain Officers and Directors' Liability insurance against claims for personal liability incurred 

by him or her as an Officer or Director, in an amount not less than One Million ($1,000,000) 

Dollars per single occurrence, and provide the County with a certified copy of such policy or 

policies.  

 16.4  All policies of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer not to cancel 

or change the insurance without first giving the County thirty (30) days' prior written notice.  

 16.5  If the Trust does not provide or maintain or enforce the insurance required by this 

Agreement, the County may take out the necessary insurance and pay the premium for periods of 

one (1) year at a time and the Trust shall pay to the County these amounts immediately on 

demand.  

10 

 

28



 16.6  The Trust’s insurance policies with respect to any claims related to this 

Agreement, shall be primary with respect to all other sources of coverage available to the Trust.  

Any County maintained insurance or self-insurance coverage shall be in excess of and not 

contribute to any Trust coverage. 

17.0  Responsibilities of the County  

 17.1  The County shall provide the Trust on an annual basis, the funds established by 

the County in its annual budget for the operation of Heritage Park, if any.  

18.0 Termination 

 18.1 If: 

  (a)  the  Trust becomes bankrupt or insolvent, or makes an assignment or  

   petitions for or enters into an arrangement for the benefit of creditors; or  

  (b)  being an incorporated entity, proceedings are begun to wind up or dissolve 

   the Trust; or  

  (c) the Trust breaches this Agreement, 

the County may immediately terminate this Agreement.  

 18.2  If the Trust is in default of the performance of any of its obligations under this 

Agreement, then the County may, by written notice to the Trust, require that such default be 

corrected within a period of 21 days. If within 21 days after receipt of such notice the default has 

not been corrected, the County, without limiting any other right it may have, may immediately 

terminate this Agreement, in which case the Trust may retain the user fees it has collected to the 

date of Termination under the terms of this Agreement, less any costs incurred by the County in 

remedying or correcting the Trust's default.  

11 

 

29



 18.3  Either Party may terminate this Agreement at any time upon giving one hundred 

eighty (180) days' notice of its intention to terminate. 

19.0  Assignment  

 19.1  The Trust may not assign this Agreement without the advance written consent of 

the County, which consent may be withheld in the absolute and unfettered discretion of the 

County.  

20.0  Open Meetings Law and Public Records Act 

 20.1  The Trust shall fully comply with Article 33C, Chapter 143 of the General 

Statutes of North Carolina, (the Open Meetings Law), Chapter 132 of the General Statutes of 

North Carolina, (the Public Records Act), and Article 8, Chapter 143 of the General Statutes of 

North Carolina, (the Public Bid Law).  

21.0 General Provisions 

 21.1 It is hereby mutually agreed that any notice required to be given under this 

agreement will be deemed to be sufficiently given if:  

 (a)  delivered at the time of delivery; and  

 (b)  mailed from any United State Post Office prepaid registered mail addressed as 

follows:  

 if to the County:  

  153 Courthouse Road, Suite 204 
  Attention:  Currituck County Manager 
  Currituck, NC  27929 
 
  
 
 
 
 

12 

 

30



 if to the Trust: 
 

 

Unless otherwise specified herein, any notice required to be given under this Agreement by any 

party will be deemed to have been given if mailed by prepaid registered mail, or sent by 

facsimile transmission, or delivered to the address of the other party set forth on the first page of 

this Agreement or at such other address as the other party may from time to time direct in 

writing, and any such notice will be deemed to have been received if mailed or faxed, 72 hours 

after the time of mailing or faxing and, if delivered, upon the date of delivery. If normal mail 

service or facsimile service is interrupted by strike, slow down, force majeure or other cause, 

then a notice sent by the impaired means of communication will not be deemed to be received 

until actually received, and the party sending the notice must utilize any other such services 

which have not been so interrupted or must deliver such notice in order to ensure prompt receipt 

thereof.  

 21.2 Time 

  Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

 21.2 Binding Effect 

  This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties hereto 

and their respective heirs, administrators, executors, successors, and permitted assignees.   

 21.3 Waiver   

  The waiver by a party of any failure on the part of the other party to perform in 

accordance with any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement is not to be construed as a 

waiver of any future or continuing failure, whether similar or dissimilar.  

13 

 

31



 21.4 Remedies 

  No remedy under this Agreement is to be deemed exclusive but will, where 

possible, be cumulative with all other remedies at law or in equity.  

 21.5 Entire Agreement  

  This Agreement when executed will set forth the entire agreements and 

understanding of the Parties as at the date hereof.  

 21.6  Further Assurances 

  Each of the Parties will do, execute or deliver or cause to be done, executed and 

delivered all such further acts, documents and things as may be reasonably required from time to 

time to give effect to this Agreement.  

 21.7 Amendment 

  No amendment, waiver, termination or variation of the terms, conditions, 

warranties, covenants, agreements and undertakings set out herein will be of any force or effect 

unless they are reduced to writing and duly executed by all Parties to this Agreement.  

  21.8 Applicable Law 

  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws 

of the State of North Carolina. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have set their hands and seals as of the day 

and year first above written.  

 

       COUNTY: 

       By:________________________________ 
              Chairman, Board of Commissioners 
 

14 

 

32



ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 
 
  
 (COUNTY SEAL) 
 
 
       TRUST: 
 
       By:_________________________________ 
        President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Secretary 
 
 (CORPORATE SEAL) 

15 

 

33



TOURISM ADVISORY BOARD
3 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

2nd Term
Petrina Ramey District 1 Vance Aydlett 4/4/2011 November 2013

Unexpired Term
Shearl Bell* District 2 David Griggs 5/21/2012 November 2012

Appointed 1st Term
Ted Jagucki District 3 Butch Petrey 11/21/11 November 2014

Reappointed 2nd Term
Paul Robinson District 4 Kevin McCord 11/21/11 November 2014

Appointed 1st Term
Janice Farr District 5 Marion Gilbert 7/2/12 June 2015

1st term
Mike Martine At-Large Paul Martin 11/19/12 November 2015 

Appointed 1st Term
Leslie Daughtry At-Large Paul O'Neal 1/3/2012 January 2015

* May Be Reappointed

Commissioner O'Neal

34



RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD
3 Year Terms

Nominated Date of 1st
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

1st Term
William Segar* District 1 Vance Aydlett 2/1/2010 January 2013

1st Term
Neel Smith District 2 David Griggs 1/17/2012 January 2015

1st Term
Michael Payment District 3 Butch Petrey 1/22/2013 January 2016

1st Term
Janet Rose District 4 Kevin McCord 1/17/2012 January 2015

2nd Term
Charles Pickell District 5 Marion Gilbert 1/22/2013 January 2016

2ndTerm
Bill Freethy At-Large Paul Martin 1/22/2013 January 2016

2nd Term
Cynthia Hampton At-Large Paul O'Neal 1/17/2012 January 2015

* May Be Reappointed

Commissioner McCord

35



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

2nd Term
Christian Conner District 1  Vance Aydlett 12/3/12 12/3/2014

2nd Term
Bryan Bass** District 2 will be alternate David Griggs 12/7/2009 12/31/2012

1st Term
Theresa Dozier District 3 Butch Petrey 3/7/2011 12/31/2013

1st Term
David Palmer District 4 Kevin McCord 4/18/2011 12/1/2013

1st Term
Cameron Tabor District 5 Marion Gilbert 2/21/2011 12/31/2013

1st Term
Mike Painter-Alternate At Large Paul Martin 8/20/12 12/31/2014

1st Term
Vivian Simpson At-Large Paul O'Neal 1/17/2012 1/1/2014

** To Be Replaced

36



RESOLUTION SUPPORTING CONTINUED FUNDING 

FOR MUSEUM OF THE ALBEMARLE 

WHEREAS, Museum of the Albemarle serves a 13 county area that 
spans Northeastern North Carolina and is one of six divisional 
museums of the North Carolina Museum of History; and 

WHEREAS, Museum of the Albemarle opened its first museum on May 
29,1967 in the old Highway Patrol building south of Elizabeth 
City; and 

WHEREAS, the Museum is a regional resource center that houses 
historically significant regional artifacts and state-of-the-art 
displays and provide rare opportunities for inquiry and 
learning; and 

WHEREAS, some of the current exhibits which are quite 
significant for our area include “Our Story; Life in the 
Albemarle”, “Out of the Blue: Coast Guard Aviation”, Under Both 
Flags: Civil war in the Albemarle”; and 

WHEREAS, The Museum of the Albemarle has become a vital resource 
for our area. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Currituck County Board 
of Commissioners supports funding for continued operation of 
Museum of the Albemarle and requests the Governor and General 
Assembly to include full funding in the state’s 2013-14 budget 
for Museum of the Albemarle 

ADOPTED this the 18th day of February, 2013. 

 

ATTEST:      _______________________ 

       S. Paul O’Neal 

______________________   Chairman 

Gwen H. Keene 

Clerk to the Board 

 

37



 

38



  

 
 

CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA ITEM #  
 
Meeting Date  
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 
SUBJECT 
Purge DSS Files 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Department of Social Services files authorized for purging according to the DHHs Controller’s 
Office “DHHS Records and Retention and Disposition Schedules for Grants” dated 3/31/12.  DSS 
requests permission to purge the following records. 
 
Low Income Energy Assistance   through 6/05 
Food  and Nutrition Services   through 6/06 
Child Care Subsidy    through 6/04 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families   through 6/2000 
USDA Commodities    through 6/07 
 
 
 
 
Submitted  By      Department  
 
Date        Attachments:  Yes             No  
 
REVIEW PROCESS 
                                                 Approved                          Attachment 
 
Finance Director           Yes                  No                              
 
County Attorney           Yes                  No                               
 
County Manager           Yes                  No                               
 
                                      Yes                  No                               
 
 
REVIEW COMMENTS 
 

 

 

DSS 

02/05/2013 

   

   

   

  X 

    

Kathlyn S. Romm  

 

39



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
January 22, 2013   
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 6:00 p.m. for a work session with 
the ABC Board and at 6:30 p.m. to review the license agreement with 
the Whalehead Trust. 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its regularly 
scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in the Commissioners 
Meeting Room with the following members present: Chairman Paul 
O’Neal, Vice-Chair Paul Martin, Commissioners Aydlett, Gilbert, 
Griggs, McCord, and Petrey.  
 
A) Invocation 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 
 
The Reverend Keith Hamm, Powells Point Christian Church, was 
present to give the invocation. 
 
C) Approval of Agenda 
 
Commissioner Aydlett moved to delete Item B, under new business, 
delete Item 8 under appointments and Item 10 under consent 
agenda.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried. 
 
Work Sessions 
 
6:00 p.m. ABC Board  
6:30 p.m. License Agreement between the County and Whalehead Trust  
 
7:00 pm Call to Order 
 

A) Invocation 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 
C) Approval of Agenda 
D) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda; please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

 
Public Hearings 

40



2 January 22, 2013 
 

 
A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-24 Chamber of Commerce:  Request 

to amend the new Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 4: Use 
Standards and Chapter 5: Development Standards to allow for 
additional temporary signage for special events. 

Administrative Reports 
 

A) Recognition of Charlene Dowdy for her years of Service  
B) Discussion of Beach Rescue Services Agreement  

Old Business 

 
A) Consideration and Action: PB 12-20 Harbinger Land & Timber:  

Request for conditional zoning from Agricultural (A) and 
Residential (R) to Conditional District-Residential (CD-R) of 84 
acres in Moyock on the west side of Poyners Road and north and 
south sides of Elrod Road. 
 

B) Consideration and Action: PB 12-19 Barry Nelms:  Request to amend 
the new Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 5:  Development 
Standards to allow off-premise directional signs. 
 

C) Consideration and Action: PB 06-45 Currituck Crossing: Request 
for a preliminary plat extension for 48 lots within three phases 
in Poplar Branch Township. 
 

New Business 

 
A) Consideration of Interlocal Agreement with Currituck County 

Schools for certain school improvements and conveyance of 
property to county  

B) Consideration of ordinance to allow a commissioner to serve on 
the ABC Board without compensation - DELETED  

C) Consideration of Ordinance prohibiting sky lanterns  
D) Board Appointments: 

1. Appointment of Commissioner to Recreation Board 
2. Appointments to Airport Advisory Board 
3. Appointments to Economic Development Board 
4. Appointments to Recreation Advisory Board 
5. Appointment to Tourism Advisory Board 
6. Appointment to Board of Adjustment 
7. Appointment to Planning Board 

41



3 January 22, 2013 
 

8. Appointment to ABC Board - DELETED 
E) Consent Agenda: 

1. Resolution for Surplus property 
2. Budget Amendments 
3. Project Ordinance for Multi-use fields at Maple, NC 
4. Project Ordinance - Tennis Courts at CCHS 
5. Approval of NC Parks & Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) 

Assurance for grant application 
6. Resolution supporting funding for dredging of Oregon Inlet 
7. Resolution authorizing ABC Board to retain profits for new 

construction debt service 
8. Approval of the Use-Value Schedule of Values for the 2013 

Reappraisal 
9. Approval of the Schedules of Rules, Standards & Values for 

the 2013 Reappraisal 
10.Approval of East Albemarle Regional Library Agreement - 

DELETED 
11.Grant Agreement with Pitt Memorial Hospital 

F) Commissioner’s Report 
G) County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

 

D) Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda; please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

 
Chairman O’Neal opened the public comment period. 
 
Richard Schrader, Arts Council, invited the public to an exhibit 
at the Moyock Library on February 1st, at 7:00 p.m. for a 
panoramic view of the US Navy. 
 
There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the 
public comment period. 
 
Public Hearings 
 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-24 Chamber of Commerce:  
Request to amend the new Unified Development Ordinance 
Chapter 4: Use Standards and Chapter 5: Development 

42



4 January 22, 2013 
 

Standards to allow for additional temporary signage for 
special events. 
 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 
 

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
PB 12-24 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
An amendment to Chapter 4 Use Standards and Chapter 5 Development Standards, to allow 
additional signage for special events.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
Item 1: That Table 4.4.2 Permitted Temporary Uses and Structures is amended by deleting the 
strikethrough and adding the underlined text: 
 

TTAABBLLEE  44..44..22::    PPEERRMMIITTTTEEDD  TTEEMMPPOORRAARRYY  UUSSEESS  AANNDD  SSTTRRUUCCTTUURREESS  

TEMPORARY USE OR STRUCTURE 

MAXIMUM 

ALLOWABLE TIME 

FRAME  
[1] 

SPECIFIC 

REGULATIONS 

Special Events (H) 4.4.6.I 
TIME FRAMES: 
 (H) Such events are limited to 14 total days per calendar year, per parcel  a maximum of four 

occurrences per parcel, per year. Events held on county or State owned property are 
exempted from maximum allowable time frames.  

 
 
Item 2: That subsection 4.4.5 General Standard for Temporary Uses and Structures is amended 
by deleting the strikethrough and adding the underlined text: 

4.4.5. General Standards for Temporary Uses and Structures 

All temporary uses, structures, or special events shall comply with the 
following general standards, unless otherwise specified in this Ordinance: 

G.  Comply with the maximum signage size for temporary signs signage 
requirements in Section 5.12, Signage 

 
 
Item 3: That Subsection 4.4.6 Specific Regulations for Certain Temporary Uses and Structures is 
amended by deleting the strikethrough and adding the underlined text. 
 

43



5 January 22, 2013 
 

4.4.6. Specific Regulations for Certain Temporary Uses and Structures 
 

F.  Special Events   

(1)  Applicability 
(a) General 

The procedures and standards of this subsection shall apply 
to all special events (including but not limited to sporting 
events, cultural events, musical events, charitable events, 
celebrations, festivals, fairs, carnivals, circuses, and 
communal camping) held on private property within the 
county, unless exempted in accordance with Section 
4.4.6.I.1.c, Exemptions. 

 
 
Item 4: That Subsection 5.12.6 Specific Sign Standards is amended by deleting the strikethrough 
and adding the underlined text. 
 

F.  Special/Local Event Signs  

A special/local event sign is for identifying a special/local event such as 
a Heritage Park event, library book sale, art exhibit or other 
noncommercial event, and may be approved as part of a temporary use 
permit (see Section 2.4.11), subject to the following standards: 
 

((11))  Up to 10 signs, each with a maximum area of 32 square feet and 
maximum height of 10 feet The following shall be allowed on the 
mainland: 

((aa))  Up to 40 signs, each with a maximum area of 6 square 
feet and up to 10 signs, each with a maximum area of 32 
square feet;  or 

((bb))  Up to 60 signs, each with a maximum area of 6 square 
feet; 

 
(2)  Up to three signs, each with a maximum area of 32 square feet 

and a maximum height of six feet shall be allowed on the Outer 
Banks; 

 

44



6 January 22, 2013 
 

(3)   On the mainland, such signs may be erected up to 30 15 days 
before the event, and shall be removed within 10 days after the 
event; 

 
(4)   On the Outer Banks, such signs may be erected up to three days 

before the event and shall be removed within two days after the 
event. 

 
 
Item 5: That Subsection 5.12.7 Landscaping Standards is amended by adding the underlined text 
and numerically renumbering subsections. 
 

5.12.7 Landscaping Standards 

All freestanding and shopping center signs shall include 
landscaping that encompasses the entire base of the sign at a 
minimum rate of two square feet of landscape area per one square 
foot of sign area. Required landscaping shall contain an 
appropriate combination of shrubs and ground cover.  
 

Item 6: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 
 
Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Josh Bass, President of the Currituck Chamber of Commerce, 
reviewed what the committee requested for non-profit signs for 
events. 
 
John Mulloy, Coinjock Ruritans, supports the request to change 
the ordinance. 
 
Karyl Loux, Bells Island, Currituck Kids, supports the change. 
 
Ginger Sikes, Animal Lovers Assistance League, requests to 
extend the number of days to remove signs. 
 

45



7 January 22, 2013 
 

John Snowden, Maple, supports non-profits but does not support 
change due to signs littering the corridor and signs placed on 
state right of ways. 
 
Denise Hall, Moyock, supports the change. 
 
There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Petrey moved to modify the time with 17 days up 
front and 8 days on the back.  Commissioner Martin seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried.   

Administrative Reports 
 

A) Recognition of Charlene Dowdy for her years of Service  
 

The Board recognized Charlene Dowdy for her 37 years of service 
as Register of Deeds and presented her with a plaque. 
 

B) Discussion of Beach Rescue Services Agreement  
 
Sylvia Wolfe, Corolla Ocean Rescue, reviewed their operation and 
programs. 
 
Barry Richman, Corolla Fire & Rescue, thanked the Board for 
their continued support for funding. 
 
Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve the agreement.  
Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Old Business 

 
A) Consideration and Action: PB 12-20 Harbinger Land & Timber:  

Request for conditional zoning from Agricultural (A) and 
Residential (R) to Conditional District-Residential (CD-R) 
of 84 acres in Moyock on the west side of Poyners Road and 
north and south sides of Elrod Road. 

 
Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the status of the request 
since the last meeting. 
 

46



8 January 22, 2013 
 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 
DATE: January 22, 2013 

PB 12-20 Harbinger Land & Timber, LLC 
 
Note: The applicant requests that this case be reviewed under the existing UDO.  

The applicant is aware that completed applications for sketch plan and 
preliminary plat approval must be submitted prior to January 1, 2013 for the 
subdivision portion of the review to remain under the existing UDO. 

 
ITEM:   PB 12-20  Harbinger Land & Timber, LLC request for conditional zoning 

from Agricultural (A) and Residential (R) to Conditional District-Residential 
(CD-R) of 84 acres in Moyock on the west side of Poyners Road and north 
and south sides of Elrod Road.  
 

LOCATION: Moyock: Poyners Road and Elrod Road, Crawford Township. 

TAX ID: 0031-000-001A-0000 
 0031-000-001B-0000 
 0031-000-001D-0000 
 0031-000-015A-0000 
 0031-000-017A-0000 
 
OWNER:  Harbinger Land & Timber, LLC 
   PO Box 4 
   Harbinger NC  27941 
 
APPLICANT:  Eddie Hyman 
   Hyman & Robey 
   PO Box 339  
   Camden, NC  27921 
 
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Current Zoning 
NORTH: Low Density Residential/Farmland R 
SOUTH Woodland/Low Density Residential/ 

Farmland 
A 

EAST:  Low Density Residential/Woodland R/A 
WEST: Low Density Residential/Woodland A 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Limited Service and 

Conservation within the Courthouse subarea. 
 

Areas designated as Limited Service are intended to provide for 
primarily residential development at low densities.  With respect to 
residential development, Limited Service areas allow for a maximum 
base density of 1 unit per acre but could be increased to 1.5 units per 

47



9 January 22, 2013 
 

acre depending upon the availability of service facilities and the 
potential impact on the surrounding community. 
 
Areas designed as Rural are intended to provide for agriculture, 
forestry, and other allied uses traditionally associated with a rural 
area.  With respect to residential development, Rural areas allow for 
no more than 1 unit per 3 acres. 
 
The policy emphasis of the Land Use Plan is for the Courthouse subarea 
to continue to grow as a small community center.  Given the existing 
cluster of services and local government functions here, and the sizable 
area of developable land adjoining the sound, it is likely that the 
Courthouse area will continue to see limited growth over the next 
decade.    Residential development densities should be limited to 1-2 
units per acre where on-site wastewater is proposed. 
 
The following Land Use Plan policy statements support this request: 
 
Policy HN1:  Currituck County shall encourage development to occur at 
densities appropriate for the location.  LOCATION AND DENSITY 
FACTORS shall include whether the development is within an 
environmentally suitable area, the type of capacity of sewage 
treatment available to the site, the adequacy of transportation facilities 
providing access to the site, and the proximity of the site to existing 
and planned urban services. 
 
Policy HN8:  To protect the County’s tax base and to ensure the long-
term viability of the County’s neighborhoods and housing stock, the 
County will continue to enforce appropriate CONSTRUCTION AND SITE 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS for residential developments.  Such 
standards may include, for example, that all homes have a permanent 
masonry foundation (except where flood levels require elevation) and 
a pitched roof and overhang, and that local roads must be built to 
meet NCDOT acceptance standards. 
 

CURRENT ZONING: Agricultural (A) and Residential (R)  
 
PROPOSED ZONING:  Conditional District – Residential (CD-R) 
  
CURRENT USE: Farmland and Woodland 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 84 Acres 
 
ZONING HISTORY: The 1989 Official Zoning Map zoned the property A and R.    
 
UTILITIES:   A water line runs along Poyners Road that serves this property.  

Individual on-site septic systems are proposed for the individual lots.      
 

48



10 January 22, 2013 
 

TRANSPORTATION:  The property is accessed by Poyners Road and Elrod Road, both of 
which are state maintained roads. 

FLOOD ZONE: The property is located in a Shaded X flood zone (500-year 
floodplain) and AE (BFE 5.4’) flood zone. 

 
WETLANDS: According to the NC Division of Coastal Management maps, it appears 

that the majority of Parcel 0031-000-017A-0000 is wetlands.  
Delineation by an environmental professional will be required to verify 
the actual wetland locations. 

 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils Map indicates the property contains Roanoke, 

Tomotley, Cape Fear, Dragston, Altavista, and Augusta soils.  Septic 
suitability ranges from suitable and marginally suitable to unsuitable.  The 
majority of the land appears to be marginally suitable to suitable for on-
site septic.  

 
PROPOSED DENSITY: 0.58 units per acre based on the total development site.   
 
PROPOSED ZONING CONDITIONS: 

1. The proposed use is a 54-lot single family subdivision having a minimum size of 
40,000 square feet and an overall density of 0.58 dwelling units/acre. 

2. Site built single family homes and a church with related church activities. 
 
COMMUNITY MEETING: 
A community meeting was held October 17, 2012 at 7:00 pm at the Moyock Library.  The 
neighborhood concerns include the proposed 40,000 sf lot sizes being smaller than the 
surrounding lot sizes, traffic on Elrod Road, soil limitations for on-site septic systems, and the 
potential incompatibility with an existing home based seafood business. 
 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The TRC recommends approval of the request to rezone 84 acres from Agricultural (A) and 
Residential (R) to Conditional District – Residential (CD-R) provided the following items are 
addressed: 
 

1. Since Tulls Creek Road is a Minor Collector Street, the number of driveways is limited by 
the UDO.  Two driveways will be allowed onto Tulls Creek Road for the three lots that 
have frontage on Tulls Creek Road since they have a combined total of approximately 
825’ of street frontage.  (UDO Section 9.1.5.3)  Cross-access easements will be necessary 
for the shared driveways. 

2. Double frontage lots require a non-access buffer along the most travelled road.  (UDO 
Section 2.6.3) 

3. It appears that lots 30-33 and possibly lot 19 are in the Conservation Land Use 
Classification in which density is limited to no more than 1 unit per 3 acres by the Land Use 
Plan.  This may reduce the number of lots allowed in that area.   

4. Correct the flood zone to AE 5.4’ 
5. Consider additional buffering (i.e. open space, vegetation) adjacent to approved 

commercial fishing use. 

49



11 January 22, 2013 
 

6. Fire hydrants must be within 500' of every inch of road frontage. Fire hydrant must be 
within 400' of all exterior portions of public structures (church). Access to more than two 
single family dwellings must be 20'' capable of 75,000 lbs. 

7. Contact the Water Dept. on waterline extension requirements. 
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board recommended approval of PB 12-20 with the Technical Review Committee 
recommendations as presented. 
 
Commissioner Martin moved to approve as amended, due to its 
consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan and that the request is 
reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly 
growth and development. 

 
B) Consideration and Action: PB 12-19 Barry Nelms:  Request to 

amend the new Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 5:  
Development Standards to allow off-premise directional 
signs. 
 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the status of the request 
since the last meeting. 
 
The new UDO was recently amended to allow off-premise directional signage for businesses 
located adjacent to the Atlantic Intracoastal Waterway.  Barry Nelms, a business owner on the 
Currituck Sound, also requested a text amendment to allow off-premise directional signage for 
businesses located along the Currituck Sound.  The Board of Commissioners remanded Mr. Nelms’ 
request back to the Planning Board and directed staff to review the sign ordinance and provide a 
recommendation to allow for off-premise directional signage.  
 
Staff presented three options to the Planning Board to allow for the signage in addition to Mr. 
Nelms’ request.  In order to reduce the number of options for the Board’s consideration, staff is 
only bringing forward the two most diverse options prepared along with Mr. Nelms’ request.  The 
two options are: 
 

1. Option 1:  Allows off-premise directional signs on properties owned by the owner of 
the business.   

2. Option 2:  Allows off-premise directional signs at the intersection of the major arterial 
street and the collector street accessing the business.  

 
 In addition to the above options, the Board may also want to consider the following: 
 

1. Business location adjacent to bodies of water, such as various creeks, Albemarle 
Sound, North River, North Landing River, Tulls Bay, Knotts Island Bay, and Coinjock 
Bay.  

2. Streets in which directional signs can be located along, such as all or various major 
arterial streets (US 158, NC 168, NC 34, NC 136, NC 615, and NC 12).  

3. Size/Height of the directional sign. 

50



12 January 22, 2013 
 

4. Number of directional signs on a pole. 
5. Distance from the intersection. 

 
The 1992 UDO allowed off-premise directional signs for businesses in Corolla Village, businesses 
within 1,200 feet of Caratoke Highway, and businesses located along the Atlantic Intracoastal 
Waterway (Coinjock Canal).  The sign was authorized by the Board of Commissioners and 
displayed the name of the business only and the direction in which it was located.   The off-
premise directional signs were required to be similar in size and style to a street name sign.  In 
2010, the sign committee prepared a comprehensive sign ordinance amendment.  The 
recommendation of the committee was to remove the off-premise directional signage from the 
ordinance, which was approved by the Board on April 4, 2011. 
 
NCDOT requires an outdoor advertising permit for signs that are designed to attract attention on 
the state highway.  Signs that guide pedestrians or are considered too small to attract the 
attention on the state highway are not subject to NCDOT outdoor advertising regulations and 
permitting. 
 
The 2006 Land Use Plan policy objectives (Polices CA1, CA4, CA5) do not support increasing the 
frequency of off-premise advertising signage.  Policy CA5 states: “...that an attractive, less 
commercialized landscape, particularly along heavily traveled land and water routes, is essential 
to the tourist-based economy of the area.  The placement of additional billboards and off-site 
advertising signs shall not be permitted in Currituck County.”   While providing direction (name 
and mileage) to the business and eliminating the advertising from the signage would be offer 
consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan policy objectives. 
 
Also included in this packet is a map with a corresponding table that identifies properties zoned 
for commercial uses along waterways and if the property accesses a major arterial street. 
 
The Planning Board recommended approval of PB 12-19 as presented by Mr. Nelms and 
recommended that all businesses on all waterways be given the same allowances at their 
November 13, 2012 meeting. 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (11-13-12) 
Mr. Kovacs apologized to Mr. Nelms for the inconvenience for having a second meeting since 
procedure was not followed properly at the first meeting.  
 
Mr. Nelms provided a brief history of his signage over the past 26 years. At the present time Mr. 
Nelms rents 4 billboards signs within the county with a monthly cost of $2,200.  Mr. Nelms stated 
he has noticed a decline in business over the last three years. Mr. Nelms stated his application to 
the board is identical to Mr. Miles application; with the exception of Coinjock Canal and Currituck 
Sound which are the same body of waters. Mr. Nelms stated if a new business is off the main 
corridor, you would want it to be successful and that would include off-premise directional 
signage. Mr. Nelms stated he needs off-premise directional signage.  Mr. Nelms saw the 
opportunity with this board and the Board of Commissioners when they approved Mr. Miles 
request; and he is asking for the same consideration.  Mr. Nelms stated staff reduced the size of 
the sign and he would want a sign that is bigger than what was approved for Mr. Miles; because 
a 4x8 sign will not do any good for someone to see 2 miles away.  Mr. Nelms also stated he 
would like lighting of the sign so it is visible at night. Mr. Nelms asked the board to think about 
what they are trying to do, which is to help a business off the road be successful. Most of Mr. 

51



13 January 22, 2013 
 

Nelms business is during the evening, dinner is served seven nights a week and lunch is served only 
on Saturday and Sunday.  
 
Ms. Schuler stated the sign cannot be digital, but a light can shine on the sign. 
 
Mr. Cartwright asked staff if what Mr. Nelms is asking for is impacted by any other thing other 
than the county ordinance. 
 
Mr. Schuler stated he would have to obtain a permit from NCDOT for an outdoor advertising 
sign. 
 
Mr. Nelms stated he pays the county in commercial taxes over $20,000 per year, $6,000 to the 
water department yearly, and $2,000 per month to employees.   
 
Mr. Cooper asked if sign setbacks are addressed in any way.  
 
Mr. Schuler stated if the sign is 10 feet tall and under there are no setbacks, but if it is larger 
there is a 10 foot setback from the front property line.  
 
Ms. Pierce stated she supports Mr. Nelms request. 
 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (9-11-12) 
The Planning Board asked staff the number of businesses on the Mainland and Outer Banks 
located on the Currituck Sound which would be affected by this request. Staff did not have this 
information available. The Planning Board also noted that new businesses located on the sound 
would benefit from this request.  
 
Ms. Wilson stated this could transfer to the Outer Banks since there are many businesses that are 
located on the Currituck Sound. This makes it different from the Atlantic Intracoastal Waterway. 
 

OPTION 1 
PB 12-19 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
Amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 5: Development Standards to allow 
off-premise directional signs for properties located adjacent to the Currituck Sound. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
 
Item 1: That Table 5.12.4 Signs Exempted from Sign Permit Requirements is amended by 
deleting the following strikethrough language: 

 Signs Exempted from Sign Permit Requirements 1.1.2.

The signs in Table 5.12.4, Signs Exempted from Sign Permits, are exempt from 
the requirements to obtain sign permit approval, but are subject to the 

52



14 January 22, 2013 
 

standards in Section 5.12.7, Maintenance Standards, and the standards in this 
sub-section. 

 
TTAABBLLEE  55..1122..44::  SSIIGGNNSS  EEXXEEMMPPTTEEDD  FFRROOMM  SSIIGGNN  PPEERRMMIITTSS  

SIGN TYPE EXAMPLE APPLICABLE STANDARDS 
MAXIMUM 

SIGN AREA       

(SQ. FT) 

MAXIMUM 

HEIGHT 

(FEET)  

Directional Sign, 
Off-Premise 

 

Up to one off-premise directional 
sign authorized by the Board of 
Commissioners may be placed on 
property under the same 
ownership as a business site 
located adjacent to the Atlantic 
Intracoastal Waterway  

100 12 

 
Item 2: That Table 5.12.6 Specific Sign Standards is amended by adding the following 
underlined language and renumbering the subsequent subsections: 

5.12.6 Specific Sign Standards 

D.  Off-Premise Directional Signs 

(1)  Applicability 

The standards in this section shall apply to properties located in a 
Business and Mixed-Use Zoning District adjoining the Currituck 
Sound or Atlantic Intracoastal Waterway that contain a use listed in 
Section 4.1.2 Use Table, Commercial Use Classification.   

(2)  Prohibited 

Except as provided in Section 5.12.3 Signs Exempt from Signage 
Regulations, and 5.12.4 Signs Exempted from Sign Permit 
Requirements, off-premise directional signs are prohibited for the  
following: 

 (a) Commercial uses and properties located on the Outer 
Banks. 

 (b) Commercial uses adjoining a major arterial street. 

 (3)  General 

53



15 January 22, 2013 
 

(a)  Off-premise directional signs must be located on land 
under the same ownership as the business to be identified 
on the sign. 

(b) Off-premise directional signs must be located in a Business 
and Mixed-Use Zoning District adjoining a major arterial 
street. 

(c) A maximum of one off-premise directional sign is permitted 
per business.  A lot shall have a maximum of one off-
premise directional sign.  

(d)  Off-premise directional signs shall not exceed 32 square 
feet in area and 10 feet in height. 

(e) Off-premise directional signs shall not be located within the 
sight triangle. 

 
Item 3: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 
 
Commissioner Petrey moved to approve due to its consistency with 
the 2006 Land Use Plan and that the request is reasonable and in 
the public interest and promotes orderly growth and development 
with a maximum size of 64 sq. ft. and located within 2 miles of 
the intersection access street; and limited to businesses 
existing on January 1, 2013.  Commissioner Aydlett seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Martin voting no. 

 
C) Consideration and Action: PB 06-45 Currituck Crossing: 

Request for a preliminary plat extension for 48 lots within 
three phases in Poplar Branch Township. 
 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
Currituck Crossing is a conservation subdivision located on Aydlett Road and approximately 400 
feet north of the intersection of Caroon Road in Poplar Branch Township.    On May 13, 2008, the 
Planning Board voted to approve the preliminary plat for 48 lots within three phases in Currituck 
Crossing.  The preliminary plat approval included the following: 
 
 

54



16 January 22, 2013 
 

Phase Number 
of Lots Lots Approved in Phase 

2 26 Lots 4-7, 21-24, 32-39, 48-50, 60-64, 71-74, and open space 
3 15 Lots 8-9, 17-20, and 51-59 

4 (portion) 7 10-16 
 
The remaining unrecorded lots in the subdivision did not receive preliminary plat approval and 
are not eligible for the extension request.  The preliminary plat approval was due to expire on 
May 13, 2010.  The North Carolina General Assembly passed a law that suspended the vesting 
period for development approvals that were valid at any time during January 1, 2008 through 
December 31, 2010.  With the law in effect the preliminary plat expiration date is January 2, 
2013.   
 
On December 28, 2012 William Brumsey, IV, the attorney for The Bank of Hampton Roads who is 
the current owner, submitted a request for a two year preliminary plat extension of the 
subdivision citing economic reasons (see attached).   
 
In accordance with the UDO Chapter 10, Section 10.3.4 and Chapter 11 Section 11.10.2, the 
Board of Commissioners may grant an extension of the preliminary plat one time for a period of 
two years, if they conclude that: 
 

1. The permit has not yet expired. 
a. The permit had not yet expired when the request for the extension was filed with 

the county.   
 

2. The permit recipient has proceeded with due diligence and in good faith; and, 
a. The developer has proceeded with due diligence and good faith, however, due to 

the economic conditions in the real estate market, the permit holder has not been 
able to proceed as desired.   

 
3. Conditions have not changed so substantially as to warrant a new application.  

Successive extensions shall not be granted.  All such extensions may be granted 
without resort to the formal processes and fees required for a new permit.   
a. There are no changes proposed in the extension request.   

Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve.  Commissioner Petrey 
seconded the motion. Motion carried. 

New Business 

 
A) Consideration of Interlocal Agreement with Currituck County 

Schools for certain school improvements and conveyance of 
property to county  

 
Ike McRee, County Attorney, reviewed the agreement. 
 

55



17 January 22, 2013 
 

Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve.  Commissioner Martin 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 

B) Consideration of ordinance to allow a commissioner to serve 
on the ABC Board without compensation  
Deleted 
 

C) Consideration of Ordinance prohibiting sky lanterns  
 
Commissioner Aydlett moved to adopt.  Commissioner Petrey 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AMENDING CHAPTER 9 OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

BY ADDING A NEW SECTION PROHIBITING THE USE OF SKY LANTERNS 
WITHIN CURRITUCK COUNTY   

 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-121 a county may by ordinance define, 
regulate, prohibit, or abate acts, omissions, or conditions detrimental to the health, safety, or 
welfare of its citizens and the peace and dignity of the county;  and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-128 a county may by ordinance regulate, 
restrict, or prohibit the sale, possession, storage, use or conveyance of any explosive, corrosive, 
inflammable, or radioactive substance or of any weapon or instrumentality of mass death and 
destruction.   the use of county property; and 

 WHEREAS, a sky lantern consists of an airborne burning fuel cell which cannot be 
controlled after launch; and 

 WHEREAS, the use of sky lanterns has become more frequent within the county 
especially during the large number of weddings and special events that occur within the county 
annually; and 

 WHEREAS, due to wind and vegetation throughout the county there exists a great risk 
that the use of sky lanterns will result in fire of such intensity to destroy life and property; and 

 WHEREAS, hose responsible for launching sky lanterns have no ability to predict or 
control where a sky lantern will land and are therefore unable to clean up sky lantern debris and 
can become litter and material harmful to wildlife ingesting sky lantern debris. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners for the 
County of Currituck, North Carolina as follows: 

56



18 January 22, 2013 
 

PART I.  The Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, North Carolina is amended by adding a 
new section to Chapter 9 of the Code of Ordinances to read as follows:  

Sec. 9-8.  Sky Lanterns Prohibited. 

 It shall be unlawful for any person to use, ignite or launch a sky lantern.  For purposes of 
this section, “sky lantern” shall mean a miniature, unmanned hot air balloon which is launched 
into the atmosphere customarily to celebrate weddings and other special events, relying on an 
open flame to heat the air inside the balloon causing it to lift into the atmosphere and typically 
made of rice paper or flame resistant paper with a fuel cell in the opening.   

PART II.   All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby  
  repealed 

PART III.   This ordinance is effective upon adoption. 
 

D) Board Appointments: 
1. Appointment of Commissioner to Recreation Board 

Commissioner Gilbert appointed Commissioner McCord.  
Commissioner Martin seconded the motion.  Motion carried 

2. Appointments to Airport Advisory Board 
Commissioner Aydlett moved to appoint Ray Griggs and reappoint 
Robin Hutchings, Jerry Malesky, Barbara Courtney and John 
Snowden.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried. 

3. Appointments to Economic Development Board 
Commissioner McCord reappointed Ed Cornet and Rosaria Thompson.  
Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

4. Appointments to Recreation Advisory Board 
Commissioner Martin appointed Michael Payment and reappointed 
Charles Pickell and Bill Freethy.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried. 

5. Appointment to Tourism Advisory Board 
Tabled 

6. Appointment to Board of Adjustment 
Tabled 

7. Appointment to Planning Board 
Tabled 

8. Appointment to ABC Board 
Tabled 
 

E) Consent Agenda: 

57



19 January 22, 2013 
 

1. Resolution for Surplus property 
2. Budget Amendments 
3. Project Ordinance for Multi-use fields at Maple, NC 
4. Project Ordinance - Tennis Courts at CCHS 
5. Approval of NC Parks & Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) 

Assurance for grant application 
6. Resolution supporting funding for dredging of Oregon 

Inlet 
7. Resolution authorizing ABC Board to retain profits for 

new construction debt service 
8. Approval of the Use-Value Schedule of Values for the 

2013 Reappraisal 
9. Approval of the Schedules of Rules, Standards & Values 

for the 2013 Reappraisal 
10. Approval of East Albemarle Regional Library 

Agreement - DELETED 
11. Grant Agreement with Pitt Memorial Hospital 

 
Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve.  Commissioner Aydlett 
seconded the motion. 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, North Carolina during its 
regularly scheduled meeting held on January 22, 2013  authorized the following, pursuant to GS 
160A and 270(b), that the property listed below, be given to the Whalehead Preservation Trust 
and the Currituck Wildlife Museum: 

 
 
Asset Tag Description Serial Number

4407 1999 Ford Ranger 1FTZR15V2XTA92681  
 

 

    
Debit 

 
Credit 

       

    

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number 

 
Account Description 

 
Increase Expense 

 
Decrease Expense 

       29690-590000 
 

Capital Outlay 
 

 $                     2,950  
  20390-499900 

 
Appropriated Fund Balance 

   
 $                   2,950  

       

58



20 January 22, 2013 
 

    
 $                     2,950  

 
 $                   2,950  

       Explanation: Fire Equipment Replacement (29690) - Increase appropriations for changes made to 
the Knotts Island Fire truck when FEAB visited the plant to review order:  Suction 
hose; intake valve; blind cap; pre-build changes; Hale foam; barrel strainer per Quote 
12-2504. 

 
 
 Net Budget Effect: Fire Equipment Replacement Fund (29) - Increased by $2,950. 

 
 

    
Debit 

 
Credit 

       

    

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number 

 
Account Description 

 
Increase Expense 

 
Decrease Expense 

       61818-557000 
 

Customer Refunds 
 

 $                   34,500  
  61818-502000 

 
Salaries 

   
 $                 34,500  

       
    

 $                   34,500  
 

 $                 34,500  

       Explanation: Mainland Water (61818) - Transfer funds from salaries, available due to vacant 
positions, to customer refunds to refund GOB LLC for tap fees collected for 14 
residential lots in Jarvis Landing, which is now a 39 unit multifamily complex that 
requires a master meter. 

 
 
 Net Budget Effect: Mainland Water (61) - Increased by $34,500. 

 
 
 
 
 

    
Debit 

 
Credit 

       

    

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number 

 
Account Description 

 
Increase Expense 

 
Decrease Expense 

       10480-545700 
 

Microfilm Processing 
 

 $                     5,000  
  10480-557301 

 
Floodplain Mapping 

   
 $                   5,000  

       
    

 $                     5,000  
 

 $                   5,000  

       Explanation: Register of Deeds (10480) - Transfer funds for microfilm processing.  Vendor did not 
invoice for past eighteen months and all bills have now been received.  Funding is 
available due to suspension of Floodplain Mapping fees for this fiscal year.  

 Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
 

59



21 January 22, 2013 
 

 

    
Debit 

 
Credit 

       

    

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number 

 
Account Description 

 
Increase Expense 

 
Decrease Expense 

       
12548-526015 

 

Promotion & Public 
Relations 

 
 $                     3,325  

  12548-554015 
 

Insurance 
   

 $                   3,325  

       
    

 $                     3,325  
 

 $                   3,325  

       Explanation: Knotts Island Volunteer Fire Department (12548) - Transfer fund from Insurance to 
Promotion and Public Relations for smoke alarms at the request of Knotts Island 
Volunteer Fire Department.  

 Net Budget Effect: Fire Services Fund (12) - No change. 
 
 

    
Debit 

 
Credit 

       

    

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number 

 
Account Description 

 
Increase Expense 

 
Decrease Expense 

       18609-545000 
 

Contract Services 
 

 $                     1,850  
  18330-449900 

 
Miscellaneous Grants 

   
 $                     450  

18390-499900 
 

Appropriated Fund Balance 
   

 $                   1,400  

       
    

 $                     1,850  
 

 $                   1,850  

       Explanation: Hog Bridge Ditch Watershed District (18609) - To record grant received from 
NCDENR and to appropriate fund balance for emergency repairs that occurred during 
Thanksgiving.  

 Net Budget Effect: Hog Bridge Ditch Watershed District Fund (18) - Increased by $1,850. 
 
 

    
Debit 

 
Credit 

       

    

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number 

 
Account Description 

 
Increase Expense 

 
Decrease Expense 

       10535-521000 
 

Rent 
 

 $                   14,844  
  10531-532000 

 
Supplies 

   
 $                 14,844  

       

60



22 January 22, 2013 
 

    
 $                   14,844  

 
 $                 14,844  

       Explanation: Communications (10535); Emergency Management (10531) - Transfer funds for 
increased rent on the Fisher Landing Tower and for new lease for tower space at 
Knotts Island.  

 Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
 
 

    
Debit 

 
Credit 

       

    

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number 

 
Account Description 

 
Increase Expense 

 
Decrease Expense 

       10540-511000 
 

Telephone & Postage 
 

 $                     1,500  
  10660-532000 

 
Supplies 

 
 $                     9,000  

  10660-526000 
 

Advertising 
   

 $                     500  
10660-514800 

 
Fees Paid to Officials 

   
 $                   1,000  

10660-592000 
 

Planning Projects 
   

 $                   9,000  

       
    

 $                   10,500  
 

 $                 10,500  

       Explanation: Community Development (10540;10660) - Increase telephone/postage and  for 
building inspectors to have cell phones in the field and for supplies for the Moyock 
small area plan and UDO printing and meeting resources.  

 Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
 
 
COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners, North Carolina that pursuant to 
Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital project 
ordinance is hereby adopted: 
 
 
SECTION 1. The project authorized is design and construction documents for multi-use fields and 
amenities for the fields in Maple, North Carolina. 
 
 
SECTION 2. The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

 

61



23 January 22, 2013 
 

     Design and contruction of multi-use fields 3,179,277$      
         and amenities

3,179,277$       
 

SECTION 3. The following revenues are available to complete this project: 
 

Occupancy Tax 477,998$          
Transfer Tax 253,524$          
Capital Improvements 153,114$          
Investment earnings 491,749$          
Residual from Moyock Library 13,166$            
Residual from YMCA/Recreation Facility 1,187,653$       
Residual from Carova Beach Park 65,696$            
Transfer contingencies from COA project 536,377$          

3,179,277$       

 
 
SECTION 4. The Finance Director is hereby directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the financial 
status of each project element delineated in Section 2 above. 
 
 
SECTION 5.  SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
 

The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within the fund as contained herein 
under the following conditions: 
 
a. He may transfer amounts between object line items within the fund up to 

One Thousand dollars ($1,000). 
 

 
SECTION 6.  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 
 

The County Manager is hereby authorized to execute contractual documents under the following 
conditions: 
 
a. He may execute contracts for construction or repair projects which do not 

require formal competitive bid procedures. 
 

b. He may execute contracts for (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies, and 
materials, or equipment which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations; (2) leases of 
personal property for a duration of one year or less and within budgeted departmental 
appropriations; and (3) services which are within budgeted departmental appropriations. 
 

c. He may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of real property, which are of a 
duration of one year or less which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations. 

 
 

SECTION 7.  USE OF BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 

62



24 January 22, 2013 
 

The Budget Officer and the Finance Director shall use this capital project ordinance for administration 
of the budget and for the accounting system. 

 
 
COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners, North Carolina that pursuant to 
Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital project 
ordinance is hereby adopted: 
 
 
SECTION 1. The project authorized is replacement of the tennis courts located in front of the High 
School in Barco, North Carolina. 
 
 
SECTION 2. The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

 

     Design and replacement of tennis courts 360,000$         

360,000$          
 

SECTION 3. The following revenues are available to complete this project: 
 

Residual from Jarvisburg Elementary School Project 360,000$          

360,000$          

 
 
SECTION 4. The Finance Director is hereby directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the financial 
status of each project element delineated in Section 2 above. 
 
 
SECTION 5.  SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
 

The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within the fund as contained herein 
under the following conditions: 
 
a. He may transfer amounts between object line items within the fund up to 

One Thousand dollars ($1,000). 
 

 
SECTION 6.  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 
 

The County Manager is hereby authorized to execute contractual documents under the following 
conditions: 
 
a. He may execute contracts for construction or repair projects which do not 

require formal competitive bid procedures. 

63



25 January 22, 2013 
 

 
b. He may execute contracts for (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies, and 

materials, or equipment which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations; (2) leases of 
personal property for a duration of one year or less and within budgeted departmental 
appropriations; and (3) services which are within budgeted departmental appropriations. 
 

c. He may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of real property, which are of a 
duration of one year or less which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations. 

 
 

SECTION 7.  USE OF BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 

The Budget Officer and the Finance Director shall use this capital project ordinance for administration 
of the budget and for the accounting system. 

 
 

RESOLUTION 
SUPPORTING THE FUNDING 

 FOR THE DREDGING OF OREGON INLET 
 

WHEREAS,  Oregon Inlet is a vital waterway that provides access to harbors of safety for 
commercial and recreation vessels on the North Carolina coast: and 
WHEREAS, Oregon Inlet is crucial to the economy of Dare County and the surrounding region 
with an annual documented economic impact of over $682 million and generates over $88 
million in federal, state and local revenue; and 
WHEREAS, without navigational access through Oregon Inlet Key Dare County and Currituck 
County industries will continue to suffer irreparable harm including commercial fishing 
operations, seafood processing houses, boat builders, recreational fishing and charter boat 
operators, marine repair facilities, and other local businesses that vitally depend on Oregon Inlet; 
and 
WHEREAS, in addition to the adverse economic impact caused by Oregon Inlet shoaling, 
public safety is at risk due to shoaling that has prevented United States Coast Guard vessels 
stationed at Oregon Inlet from being able to use the channel to render emergency assistance to 
ships in distress off the coast of North Carolina. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners strongly support the Dare County’s request that State and Federal agencies 
immediately begin the work necessary to clear the channel at Oregon Inlet and to appropriate 
ongoing funding to maintain safe and reliable access as a matter of economic necessity and 
public safety. 
 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR CURRITUCK COUNTY, 
NORTH CAROLINA AUTHORIZING THE CURRITUCK COUNTY ABC BOARD TO 
RETAIN A PORTION OF PROFIT DISTRIBUTION FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Currituck County ABC Board is contemplating the improvement or 
replacement of its Moyock, North Carolina facility; and   
 

64



26 January 22, 2013 
 

 WHEREAS, the Currituck County ABC Board has requested that it be allowed to retain 
up to 85% of the amount of profit normally distributed to Currituck County in order to fund the 
costs for the capital expenditure required to improve or replace its Moyock, North Carolina 
facility.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for Currituck 
County, North Carolina that pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §18B-805: 
 
 Section 1.  The Currituck ABC Board is authorized to retain up to 85% of the amount of 
profit normally distributed to Currituck County for the purpose of financing the improvement or 
replacement of its Moyock, North Carolina facility but shall continue distribution of other 
statutorily required distribution of profits. 
 
 Section 2.  This resolution shall remain effective until June 30, 2015 or until the date on 
which the Currituck County ABC Board has paid the cost for its Moyock, North Carolina facility 
capital improvements whichever first occurs.  
  
 Section 3.  The resolution entitled “RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS FOR CURRITUCK COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA REPEALING  A 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CURRITUCK COUNTY ABC BOARD TO RETAIN A 
PORTION OF PROFIT DISTRIBUTION FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND ALLOWING 
RETENTION OF $300,000 IN PROFIT FOR RENOVATION OF EXISTING MOYOCK, 
NORTH CAROLINA STORE” adopted August 17, 2009 is hereby repealed. 
 
 
F) Commissioner’s Report 

Commissioner Martin supports the 2nd amendment. 
 
Commissioner Aydlett will be at the Legislative Goals Conference 
in Raleigh. 
 
Commissioner Gilbert, commented on the Shingle Landing meeting; 
Airport Advisory Board and Albemarle Commission. 
 
Commissioner Griggs requested a resolution in support of 2nd 
amendment on next agenda. 
 
Chairman O’Neal commented on the violence in videos that our 
youth are watching. 
 

G) County Manager’s Report 
No comments 

 

65



27 January 22, 2013 
 

Adjourn 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

 
 

 

66



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
February 4, 2013   
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its regularly 
scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in the Commissioners 
Meeting Room with the following members present: Chairman Paul 
O’Neal, Vice-Chair Paul Martin, Commissioners Aydlett, Gilbert, 
Griggs, McCord, and Petrey.  
 
A) Invocation 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mr. Walter Gallop, Air Force Chaplain, was present to give the 
invocation. 
 
C. Approval of Agenda 
 
Commissioner Martin moved to approve the agenda as amended by 
deleting Surplus Resolution for Sheriff to dispose of seized 
weapons in the Consent Agenda, adding the EARL Agreement to 
Consent Agenda and adding Appointment to Planning Board.  
Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 

A) Invocation 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 

C) Approval of Agenda 

D) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; please 
limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Public Hearings 
A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-25 Corolla Light PUD, Phase 13:  Request for a 

special use permit for an office/warehouse. The property is located at Lot 2, 
Phase 13, NC 12 (Ocean Trail), Tax Map 115B, Parcel 2, Section 13, Poplar 
Branch Beach Township. 

New Business 
A) Consideration of amendment to Ordinance regulating Outdoor Tour Operators  
B) Consideration of Ordinance to provide that a member of the Board of 

Commissioners shall serve on the Currituck County ABC Board without 
compensation  

C) Consideration of Trash Removal Service on Beach Strand  
D) Board Appointments: 

1. Re-appointment of Daniel Clements and George Mears to the Whalehead 
Drainage Service District 

2. Appointments to ABC Board 
3. Appointment to Planning Board 
 

67



2 February 4, 2013 
 

E) Consent Agenda: 
1. Resolution supporting NCACC Legislative Goals 
2. Resolution in support of 2nd Amendment 
3. Budget Amendments 
4. Resolution approving McCord Contract 
5. Surplus Resolution for Sheriff to dispose of seized weapons - DELETED 
6. Report of unpaid 2012 Real Estate Taxes & order advertisement of Tax 

Liens 

7. Approval of Agreement for East Albemarle Regional Library System  

F) Commissioner’s Report 
G) County Manager’s Report 

Closed Session 

According to GS 143-318.11(4) to discuss matters relating to the location or expansion 
of industries or other businesses 

Adjourn 

 
D. Public Comment  

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda; please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

 
Chairman O’Neal opened the public comment period. There being no 
comments, he closed the public comment period. 
 
 
Public Hearings 
 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-25 Corolla Light PUD, 
Phase 13:  Request for a special use permit for an 
office/warehouse. The property is located at Lot 2, Phase 
13, NC 12 (Ocean Trail), Tax Map 115B, Parcel 2, Section 
13, Poplar Branch Beach Township. 

Sworn testimony was given prior to making comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 
DATE: February 4, 2013 

PB 12-25 Corolla Light, Phase 13, Special Use Permit (Office/Warehouse) 
 
ITEM:   PB 12-25 Corolla Light, Phase 13, Special Use Permit (Office/Warehouse)  

 
LOCATION: Lot 2, Phase 13, NC 12 (Ocean Trail), Corolla, NC 

68



3 February 4, 2013 
 

TAX ID: 115B-000-0002-0013 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: General Business (GB)    
  
PRESENT USE: Vacant 
 
OWNER:  TFP, LLC 
   PO Box 369, 1142 Ocean Trail 
   Corolla, NC 27927 
 
APPLICANT:  Same as Owner 

  
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 

 Land Use 2012 Zoning 
NORTH: Real Estate Office/Sewage Plant GB 
SOUTH Utilities/Vacant RO1 
EAST:  Residential RO1 
WEST: Utilities GB 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service within the 

Corolla subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 2.50 acres 
 
NUMBER OF UNITS: 4 
       
PROJECT DENSITY: 0.625 units per acre 
 
UTILITIES: Water: Currituck County. 
 Sewer: Carolina Water Service (3,535 gpd)     
 
PUD ALLOCATION: 267.05 acres total land area, 131.83 acres total open space, 26.7 

acres commercial allocation  
 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

The applicant proposes to construct three office/warehouse buildings. 
 

 
II. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 

Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 

Special use permits (SUP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. Through the SUP procedure, property uses which would otherwise 
be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of 
approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a SUP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and suggested 
findings of fact are outlined as follows: 

69



4 February 4, 2013 
 

 
1. Completeness of application. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The application is complete 

 
2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses as a special use 

indicated with an “S”. 
Suggested Findings: 
a.  Office/Warehouse use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses. 

 
3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this ordinance. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The conditions proposed appear to meet the minimum requirements of the UDO. 

 
4. The special use will not endanger the public health or safety: 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The use will not endanger the public health or safety. 

 
5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will be in 

harmony with the area in which it is located 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The project site adjoins several developed residential properties to the east.  

Considering the scale of the proposed development, and given that the proposed 
buildings do not share the architectural features typical of the area, buffering of 
adjacent residential properties is important to ensure protection of property values 
and to remain in harmony with the surrounding area.  Buffering is best achieved by 
preserving existing vegetation which, in this case, is dense and well established.  In 
areas where existing vegetation cannot be preserved, the newly planted buffer yard 
shall incorporate healthy, large caliper, native trees in order to speed the return of an 
adequate buffer.  

 
6. The special use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted 

plan. 
Suggested Findings: 
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service within the Corolla subarea.  The 
proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the plan, some of which are: 

 
POLICY CD7: Attractive, environmentally beneficial LANDSCAPING shall be provided by 
new commercial or office developments, and in the rehabilitation and upgrading of 
existing developments. Appropriate BUFFERING or other effective DESIGN FEATURES may 
be employed to allow less intensive forms of commercial and office development to adjoin 
existing or planned residential uses. 
POLICY ID5: WAREHOUSING, STORAGE AND DISTRIBUTION facilities shall have access 
to thoroughfares of adequate traffic carrying capacity, and shall be appropriately 
designed and/or visually buffered according to the visibility of their location. 

 
 

7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, 
including, but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county 

70



5 February 4, 2013 
 

facilities.  Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining 
when public facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be in place or programmed to be 
in place within two years after the initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in the case of 
major subdivisions). 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The uses should not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public facilities.   

 
III. Staff Review and Action: 

Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends 
approval subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Buffering along the east property line shall be a top priority and shall be achieved 
via existing vegetation where possible.  Newly planted vegetation in this area shall 
include appropriately spaced, healthy, large caliper, native trees to quickly 
reestablish a sufficient buffer.  

2. After grading of the site is complete, a detailed landscaping plan shall be submitted 
for staff review to ensure an adequate bufferyard is installed where existing 
vegetation has been removed.  The plan shall include the species, caliper, and typical 
mature height of proposed trees. 

 

IV.  Planning Board Recommendation: 
The Planning Board recommended approval of the special use permit for an 
office/warehouse as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 

Chairman O’Neal opened the public hearing. 

Commissioner Aydlett questioned the existing vegetation. 

Commissioner Petrey questioned the hours of operation. 

There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the 
public hearing. 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve with findings of fact, 
staff recommendations and case analysis. Commissioner Gilbert 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

New Business 

 
A) Consideration of amendment to Ordinance regulating Outdoor 

Tour Operators 
  

Commissioner Petrey moved to approve.  Commissioner Aydlett 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 

71



6 February 4, 2013 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AMENDING SECTION 8-87 AND SECTION 8-92 OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY 
CODE OF ORDINANCES AND ORDINANCE TO REGULATE OUTDOOR TOUR 

OPERATORS 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-121 a county may by ordinance define, 
regulate, prohibit, or abate acts, omissions, or conditions detrimental to the health, safety, or 
welfare of its citizens and the peace and dignity of the county;  and 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-134 a county may by ordinance regulate 
and license occupations, businesses, trades, and professions; and  
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1 of Chapter 875 of the 1985 Session Laws, as amended 
by Session Law 1998-64 and Session Law 2001-33 Currituck County may by ordinance regulate, 
restrict, and prohibit the use of dune or beach buggies, jeeps, motorcycles, cars, trucks, or any 
other form of power-driven vehicle specified by the Board of Commissioners on the foreshore, 
beach strand, and the barrier dune system; and 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners for the 
County of Currituck, North Carolina as follows: 
PART I.  Section 8-87 of the Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, North Carolina is amended 
by to read as follows: 
Sec. 8-87.  Definitions. 
 Bus shall mean a vehicle with chassis not greater than one (1) ton and larger than a 
private passenger vehicle, but with a wheelbase greater than nineteen (19) feet in overall length 
not more than 25 feet, seats typically accessed by side or center aisle, intended to carry more 
than 15 passengers and used for the purpose of touring for hire. 
 Designated area shall mean that area of the county on the Outer Banks from the terminus 
of the paved portion of N.C. Highway 12 to the Virginia state line 
 Outdoor tour operator shall mean a company or individual that arranges travel tours by 
outdoor tour vehicle.   
 Outdoor tour vehicle shall mean a vehicle with maximum passenger capacity of 15 
persons engaged in the business of carrying passengers for hire or offering to carry passengers 
for hire, when the primary purpose for riding in such vehicle is not transportation but touring and 
sight-seeing.  A bus may not be used as an outdoor tour vehicle. 
PART II.   Section 8-92 of  the Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, North Carolina is 
amended by to read as follows: 
Sec. 8-92.  Identification and marking generally. 
 (a)  Every outdoor tour vehicle shall have a sign in plain view on each side of the vehicle, 
legible at a distance of 50 feet in letters not less than three inches high, containing the full name 
of the outdoor tour operator company operating the vehicle. 
 (b)  There shall be on each side and on the rear of each outdoor tour vehicle a number no 
less than at least six three inches high, such number to be separate and distinct number from that 
on any other outdoor tour operator vehicle in the county.  The numbers must be permanently 
affixed to the vehicle.  The number shall be assigned to the outdoor tour vehicle and the owner 
thereof by the county manager or manager’s designee and shall not be altered or changed without 
consent of the county manager or manager’s designee.  
PART III.  Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 

72



7 February 4, 2013 
 

PART IV.  Severability.  In the event one or more of the provisions contained in this ordinance 
shall for any reason by held by a court to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect the remaining provisions of this 
ordinance, and this ordinance shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable 
provision or provisions had never been contained herein. 
 

B) Consideration of Ordinance to provide that a member of the 
Board of Commissioners shall serve on the Currituck County 
ABC Board without compensation 
  

Commissioner Petrey moved to approve.  Commissioner Martin 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE III OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES TO PROVIDE THAT A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS SHALL SERVE ON THE CURRITUCK COUNTY ABC BOARD 
WITHOUT COMPENSATION  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-76 a board of commissioners may 
change the composition and manner of selection of boards, commissions, and agencies, and may 
generally organize and reorganize the county government in order to promote orderly and 
efficient administration of county affairs; and 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-77 a board of commissioners may 
appoint advisory boards, committees, councils and agencies composed of qualified and interested 
county residents to study, interpret and develop community support and cooperation in activities 
conducted by or under the authority of the board of commissioners; and 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §18B-700(c) county ABC board members shall 
be appointed by the board of county commissioners. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners for the 
County of Currituck, North Carolina as follows: 
PART I.  Chapter 2, Article III, Division 1 of the Currituck County Code of Ordinances is 
amended by adding a new section to read as follows 
Sec. 2-99.  County commissioner to serve as county ABC board member without   
       compensation. 
     A county commissioner shall be appointed by the board of commissioners to serve as a 
member of the county ABC board.  The county commissioner member of the county ABC board 
shall not receive compensation for service on the county ABC board.   
PART II.   All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby  
  repealed. 
 

C) Consideration of Trash Removal Service on Beach Strand 
  

Dan Scanlon, County Manager, reviewed the contract. 
 

73



8 February 4, 2013 
 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve the contract with Corolla 
Surf Shop in the amount of $26,100 to come from Occupancy Tax.  
Commissioner Petrey seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 

D) Board Appointments: 
1. Re-appointment of Daniel Clements and George Mears to 

the Whalehead Drainage Service District 
Commissioner Martin moved to reappoint Daniel Clements and 
George Mears.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 

2. Appointments to ABC Board 
Commissioner Petrey moved to appoint Commissioner Griggs 
and to appoint Gene Gregory as Chairman.  Commissioner 
Martin seconded the motion. Motion carried. 

3. Appointment to Planning Board 
Commissioner Griggs appointed Steven Craddock.  
Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

 
E) Consent Agenda: 

1. Resolution supporting NCACC Legislative Goals 
2. Resolution in support of 2nd Amendment 
3. Budget Amendments 
4. Resolution approving McCord Contract 
5. Surplus Resolution for Sheriff to dispose of seized 

weapons- DELETED 
6. Report of unpaid 2012 Real Estate Taxes & order 

advertisement of Tax Liens 
7. Approval of Agreement for East Albemarle Regional 

Library System 
 

Commissioner Martin moved to approve.  Commissioner Petrey 
seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 

RESOLUTION 
IN SUPPORT OF LEGISLATIVE GOALS ADOPTED BY THE MEMBERSHIP OF THE 

NORTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners was founded in 
1908 as a membership organization to represent the interests of counties before the General 
Assembly;  

74



9 February 4, 2013 
 

WHEREAS, all 100 counties are voluntary members of the North Carolina Association 
of County Commissioners, making the NCACC the official voice of North Carolina counties; 

WHEREAS, every two years, the membership of the NCACC develops and approves a 
package of legislative proposals designed to protect and enhance the interests of county 
governments and the citizens who live in our 100 counties; 

WHEREAS, the process to generate this package of legislative goals is deliberate and 
inclusive and provides extensive opportunities for counties to be involved; 

WHEREAS, Currituck County is an active participant within the NCACC and 
participated in the process to develop these legislative proposals; 

WHEREAS, more than 200 county officials representing 88 counties gathered in 
Durham County on Jan. 24-25, 2013, and debated and ultimately approved 60 proposals 
submitted by counties to be included in the legislative goals package; 

WHEREAS, the attached proposals represent the collective wishes of all 100 counties; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners adopts this resolution in support of the legislative proposals adopted by the 
NCACC membership at its 2013 Legislative Goals Conference; 

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that copies of this resolution be transmitted to the 
members of the General Assembly representing Currituck County to let them know of our 
support for these issues. 

 

RESOLUTION AFFIRMING AND SUPPORTING THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO 
THE CONSTITUTION OF THE UNITED STATES AND ARTICLE I, SECTION 30 OF 

THE CONSTITUTION OF NORTH CAROLINA  
 

 WHEREAS, the Second Amendment to the Constitution of the United States provides 
that “[A] well regulated militia being necessary to the security of a free state, the right of the 
people to keep and bear arms shall not be infringed.”, and; 
 WHEREAS, the Article I, Section 30 of the Constitution of North Carolina provides that 
“A well regulated militia being necessary to the security of a free State, the right of the people to 
keep and bear arms shall not be infringed; and, as standing armies in time of peace are dangerous 
to liberty, they shall not be maintained, and the military shall be kept under strict subordination 
to, and governed by the civil power.  Nothing herein shall justify the practice of carrying 
concealed weapons, or prevent the General Assembly from enacting penal statutes against that 
practice.”: and; 
 WHEREAS, the United States Supreme Court in District of Columbia v. Heller, 128 S. 
Ct. 2783, 171 L.Ed.2d 637, 554 U.S. 570 (2008), an opinion authored by Justice Scalia, held that 
although the Second Amendment to the Constitution of the United States does not provide the 
right to keep and carry any weapon in any manner for any purpose, the Second Amendment 
protects an individual right to possess a firearm unconnected with service in a militia and to use 
that arm for traditionally lawful purposes, such as self-defense within a home; and 
 WHEREAS, the United States Supreme Court in McDonald v. City of Chicago, 130 S. 
Ct. 3020, 177 L.Ed.2d 894 (2010), an opinion authored by Justice Alito, held that the Fourteenth 
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States incorporates the Second Amendment right 

75



10 February 4, 2013 
 

to keep and bear arms for self-defense and is fully applicable to the States as fundamental to the 
Nation’s scheme of ordered liberty, and; 
 WHEREAS, the North Carolina Supreme Court in State v. Dawson, 272 N.C. 535, 159 
S.E.2d 1 (1968) held that the right to bear arms, which is protected and safeguarded by the 
federal and State Constitutions, is subject to the authority of the General Assembly, in the 
exercise of the police power, to regulate, but the regulation must be reasonable and not 
prohibitive, and must bear a fair relation to the preservation of the public peace and safety; and 
 WHEREAS, it is reported that the President of the United States is proposing, and the 
United States Congress may consider, adoption of laws or regulations that may have the effect of 
infringing upon an individual’s constitutional right to possess a firearm as determined by the 
United States Supreme Court and North Carolina Supreme Court. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for the 
County of Currituck, North Carolina that: 
Section 1. The North Carolina delegation to the United States Congress adamantly oppose  
  the enactment of any law, rule or regulation that may have the effect of infringing  
  upon an individual’s  constitutional right to possess a firearm as determined by  
  the United States Supreme Court and North Carolina Supreme Court. 
Section 2. The county’s legislative delegation to the North Carolina General Assembly 

adamantly oppose the enactment of any law, rule or regulation that may have the 
effect of infringing upon an individual’s  constitutional right to possess a firearm 
as determined by the United States Supreme Court and North Carolina Supreme 
Court.  

Section 3. The Clerk to the Board of Commissioners forward a copy of this resolution to  
  each member of the North Carolina delegation to the United States Congress and  
  county’s delegation to the North Carolina General Assembly. 
 
 

    
Debit 

 
Credit 

       

    

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number 

 
Account Description 

 
Increase Expense 

 
Decrease Expense 

       10650-545000 
 

Contract Services 
 

 $                   18,720  
  10390-495015 

 
T F - Occupancy Tax 

   
 $                 18,720  

       
    

 $                   18,720  
 

 $                 18,720  

       Explanation: Economic Development (10650) - Increase appropriations for lawn maintenance in 
the Maple Commerce Park for the remainder of this fiscal year. 

 Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $18,720. 
 
 
 
 

76



11 February 4, 2013 
 

    
Debit 

 
Credit 

       

    

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number 

 
Account Description 

 
Increase Expense 

 
Decrease Expense 

       10430-532000 
 

Ballots/Imprinting 
 

 $                     2,152  
  

10430-514801 
 

Fees Paid to Precinct 
Officials 

 
 $                       262  

  10430-590000 
 

Capital Outlay 
 

 $                         16  
  10430-511000 

 
Telephone & Postage 

 
 $                     2,666  

  10330-445200 
 

Elections Grants 
   

 $                   5,096  

       
    

 $                     5,096  
 

 $                   5,096  

       Explanation: Elections (10430) - To record HAVA grant for ballot printing and to transfer funds final 
expenses for the November election and additional mailings for this fiscal year. 

 Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $5,096. 
 
 
 
 

    
Debit 

 
Credit 

       

    

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number 

 
Account Description 

 
Increase Expense 

 
Decrease Expense 

       10480-514500 
 

Training & Education 
 

 $                       300  
  10480-516000 

 
Maintenance & Repair 

 
 $                       342  

  10480-545200 
 

Records Management 
 

 $                       400  
  10480-532000 

 
Supplies 

   
 $                   1,042  

       
    

 $                     1,042  
 

 $                   1,042  

       Explanation: Register of Deeds (10480) - Transfer budgeted funds for additional training, 
maintenance associated with changing templates for the Register of Deeds and 
records management.  

 Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
 
 
 
 
 

77



12 February 4, 2013 
 

    
Debit 

 
Credit 

       

    

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number 

 
Account Description 

 
Increase Expense 

 
Decrease Expense 

       25607-545000 
 

Contract Services 
 

 $                   10,000  
  25390-499900 

 
Appropriated Fund Balance 

   
 $                 10,000  

       
    

 $                   10,000  
 

 $                 10,000  

       Explanation: Guinea Mill Watershed Service District (25607) - Increase appropriations for 
watershed improvements in the Guinea Mill watershed service district. 

 Net Budget Effect: Guinea Mill Watershed Improvement Sewer District (25) - Increased by $10,000. 
 
 

    
Debit 

 
Credit 

       

    

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number 

 
Account Description 

 
Increase Expense 

 
Decrease Expense 

       10795-545000 
 

Contract Service 
 

 $                       440  
  10795-576003 

 
Youth Flag Football 

   
 $                     440  

       
    

 $                       440  
 

 $                     440  

       Explanation: Parks & Recreation (10795) - Transfer funds for increase in contracts for the 
remainder of this fiscal year. 

 Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
 
 

RESOLUTION RATIFYING CONTRACTS BY AND BETWEEN McCORD’S 
LANDSCAPING AND COUNTY OF CURRITUCK  

 
 WHEREAS, in 2011 the County of Currituck solicited bids for lawn maintenance 
services on certain county property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, McCord’s Landscaping submitted the lowest responsible bids for lawn 
maintenance of certain county property identified as Northern Mainland Properties and Knotts 
Island Properties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, contracts dated January 27, 2012 were entered into between McCord’s 
Landscaping and the county; and 
 

78



13 February 4, 2013 
 

 WHEREAS, on December 3, 2012 Kevin McCord was sworn into office as a Currituck 
County Commissioner; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Kevin McCord has more than a ten percent (10%) ownership interest in 
McCord’s Landscaping; and 
  
 WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. §14-234 provides that a public officer may not enter into a 
contract with the county the public officer serves except in  a county with no town or city with 
population of more than 15,000 persons; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Currituck has no towns or cities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, McCord’s Landscaping has been performing under its contracts with the 
county and the county has determined that it is in the county’s best interest for such contracts to 
continue. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for the 
County of Currituck that: 
 
Section 1.   The contracts entered into between McCord’s Landscaping and the   
 county dated January 27, 2012 in the aggregate amount of $37,800.00 are   
 hereby ratified and affirmed.   
   
Section 2. This resolution shall be recorded in the official minutes of the Board of   
 Commissioners for Currituck County stating that Kevin McCord did not   
 vote or otherwise participate in the adoption of this resolution.  
 
Section 3.  The Clerk to the Board of Commissioners and Finance Officer are directed  
 to comply with the posting and reporting requirements set forth in N.C.   
 Gen. Stat. §14-234 with respect to this resolution and contracts described   
 herein.  
 
             

F) Commissioner’s Report 
Commissioner McCord stated that there was a BBQ dinner fund 
raiser for the Rick Ballance family on February 16 at Camden 
School. 
 
Commissioner Griggs, commented on the New Commissioners School 
he attended. 
 
Commissioner Martin, stated that there will be someone at the 
Senior Center to file taxes for low to medium income families, 
and to please call the Senior Center. 
 

79



14 February 4, 2013 
 

Commissioner Aydlett commented on the Legislative Goals 
conference he attended in Raleigh. 
 
Commissioner Gilbert stated that the Board will hold a retreat 
this weekend for commissioners. 
 
Chairman O’Neal commented on the new flood insurance rates and 
new maps. 
 

G) County Manager’s Report 
No comments 

Closed Session 
According to GS 143-318.11(4) to discuss matters relating to the 
location or expansion of industries or other businesses and (3) 
to consult with the attorney in order to preserve the attorney-
client privilege London, LLC, Mermaids vs. Currituck County. 
 
Commissioner Martin moved to go into closed session as stated 
above.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried. 

Adjourn 

After reconvening from closed session, no action was taken. 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 
 

80



RESOLUTION FOR APPROVING WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE PLAN 
 

 
 WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute 143-355 (l) requires that each unit of local 
government that provides public water services or plans to provide such services shall, either individually 
or together with other such units of local government, prepare and submit a Water Shortage Response 
Plan; and  
 
 WHEREAS, as required by the statute and in the interests of sound local planning, a Water 
Shortage Response Plan for the Southern Outer Banks Water System, has been developed and 
submitted to the Currituck County Board of Commissioners for approval; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Currituck County Board of Commissioners finds that the Water Shortage 
Response Plan is in accordance with the provisions of North Carolina General Statute 143-355 (l) and 
that it will provide appropriate guidance for the future management of water supplies for the Southern 
Outer Banks Water System, as well as useful information to the Department of Environment and Natural 
Resources for the development of a state water supply plan as required by statute; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners of the 
Southern Outer Banks Water System that the Water Shortage Response Plan entitled, Water Shortage 
Response Plan Southern Outer Banks Water in Currituck County dated February 18, 2013, is hereby 
approved and shall be submitted to the Department of Environment and Natural Resources, Division of 
Water Resources; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Currituck County Board of Commissioners intends that this 
plan shall be revised to reflect changes in relevant data and projections at least once every five years or 
as otherwise requested by the Department, in accordance with the statute and sound planning practice. 
 
   ADOPTED  This the 18th day of  January, 20 13           . 
 

 
                                                                             

      ___________________________ 
      S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman  
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________ 
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
Clerk to the Board 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
  

 
 
 

 

81



Southern Outer Banks Water-Water Shortage Response Plan 

 Water Shortage Response Plan 
Southern Outer Banks Water in Currituck County, North Carolina 

February 18, 2013 
 
 
 
The procedures herein are written to reduce potable water demand and supplement 
existing drinking water supplies whenever existing water supply sources are inadequate 
to meet current demands for potable water.  
 
 
I. Authorization 
 
The Currituck County Manager shall enact the following water shortage response 
provisions whenever the trigger conditions outlined in Section IV are met. In his 
absence, the Superintendent will assume this role. 
 
Mr. Daniel Scanlon 
Currituck County Manager 
Phone: (252) 232-6014 
E-mail: 
dan.scanlon@currituckcountync.gov  
 
 

Mr. Benjie Carawan 
Currituck County Superintendent  
Phone: (252) 453-2620 
E-mail: 
benjie.carawan@currituckcouontync.gov 
 
 

II. Notification 
 
The following notification methods will be used to inform water system employees and 
customers of a water shortage declaration: employee e-mail announcements, notices at 
municipal buildings, notices in water bills. Required water shortage response measures 
will be communicated through Focus on Currituck, PSA announcements and the County 
website http://www.co.currituck.nc.us/, on local radio and cable stations. Declaration of 
emergency water restrictions or water rationing will be communicated to all customers 
by telephone through use of reverse 911. 
 
 
 
III. Levels of Response 
 
Five levels of water shortage response are outlined in the table below. The five levels of 
water shortage response are: voluntary reductions, mandatory reductions I and II, 
emergency reductions and water rationing. A detailed description of each response 
level and corresponding water reduction measures follow below. 
 
 
 
  

NC Division of Water Resources 
http://www.ncwater.org 

1 

82



Southern Outer Banks Water-Water Shortage Response Plan 

 
 
Stage Response Description 

1 Voluntary 
Reductions 

Water users are encouraged to reduce their water use and 
improve water use efficiency; however, no penalties apply for 
noncompliance. Water supply conditions indicate a potential 
for shortage. 

2 Mandatory 
Reductions I 

Water users must abide required water use reduction and 
efficiency measures; penalties apply for noncompliance. 
Water supply conditions are significantly lower than the 
seasonal norm and water shortage conditions are expected to 
persist. 

3 Mandatory 
Reductions II 

Same as in Stage 2 

4 Emergency 
Reductions 

Water supply conditions are substantially diminished and 
pose an imminent threat to human health or environmental 
integrity. 

5 Water 
Rationing 

Water supply conditions are substantially diminished and 
remaining supplies must be allocated to preserve human 
health and environmental integrity. 

 
In Stage 1, Voluntary Reductions, all water users will be asked to reduce their normal 
water use by 5%. Customer education and outreach programs will encourage water 
conservation and efficiency measures including: irrigating landscapes a maximum of 
one inch per week; preventing water waste, runoff and watering impervious surfaces; 
watering plants deeply to encourage root growth; washing only full loads in clothes and 
dishwashers; using spring-loaded nozzles on garden hoses; and identifying and 
repairing all water leaks. 
 
In Stage 2, Mandatory Reductions I, all customers are expected to reduce their water 
use by 10% in comparison to their previous month’s water bill. In addition to continuing 
to encourage all voluntary reduction actions, the following restrictions apply: irrigation is 
limited to a half inch per week between 8PM and 8AM; outdoor use of drinking water for 
washing impervious surfaces is prohibited; and all testing and training purposes 
requiring drinking water (e.g. fire protection) will be limited. 
 
In Stage 3, Mandatory Reductions II, customers must continue actions from all previous 
stages and further reduce water use by 20% compared to their previous month’s water 
bill. All non-essential uses of drinking water are banned and garden and landscape 
irrigation must be reduced to the minimum amount necessary for survival. Additionally, 
in Stage 3, a drought surcharge of 1.5 times the normal water rate applies. 
 
In Stage 4, Emergency Reductions, customers must continue all actions from previous 
stages and further reduce their water use by 25% compared to their previous month’s 
water bill. A ban on all use of drinking water except to protect public health and safety is 
implemented and drought surcharges increase to 2 times the normal water rate. 

NC Division of Water Resources 
http://www.ncwater.org 

2 

83



Southern Outer Banks Water-Water Shortage Response Plan 

 
The goal of Stage 5, Water Rationing, is to provide drinking water to protect public 
health (e.g. residences, residential health care facilities and correctional facilities). In 
Stage 5, all customers are only permitted to use water at the minimum required for 
public health protection. Firefighting is the only allowable outdoor water use and pickup 
locations for distributing potable water will be announced according to Currituck 
County’s Emergency Response Plan. Drought surcharges increase to 5 times the 
normal water rate.  
 
 
IV. Triggers 
 
 

 Southern Outer Banks Water’s water source is groundwater. The following 
measurements of well pumping times and well levels in relationship to pump 
intake levels trigger entry into corresponding water restriction stages. 

 
Stage Well Operating Conditions 

1 Pumping Time >10 hrs  
20% reduction in seasonal normal distance from static water level and 
pump intake 
20% increase pumping time for same output 

2 Pumping Time >12 hrs  
40% reduction in distance from static water level and pump intake 
40% increase pumping time for same output 

3 Pumping Time >14 hrs  
60% reduction in distance from static water level and pump intake 
60% increase pumping time for same output 

4 Pumping Time >20 hrs  
80% reduction in distance from static water level and pump intake 

5 Water level at pump intake elevation 
 
 
 
 
 
Return to Normal 
 
When water shortage conditions have abated and the situation is returning to normal, 
water conservation measures employed during each phase should be decreased in 
reverse order of implementation. Permanent measures directed toward long-term 
monitoring and conservation should be implemented or continued so that the 
community will be in a better position to prevent shortages and respond to recurring 
water shortage conditions. 
 
 

NC Division of Water Resources 
http://www.ncwater.org 

3 

84



Southern Outer Banks Water-Water Shortage Response Plan 

V. Enforcement 
 
 
The provisions of the water shortage response plan will be enforced by Currituck 
County utility department and police personnel. Violators may be reported to the 
dedicated water conservation hotline. Citations are assessed according to the following 
schedule depending on the number of prior violations and current level of water 
shortage. 
 
Water Shortage Level First Violation Second Violation Third Violation 

Voluntary Reductions N/A N/A N/A 

Mandatory Reductions 
(Stages 2 and 3) 

Warning $250 Discontinuation of 
Service 

Emergency Reductions $250 Discontinuation of 
Service 

Discontinuation of 
Service 

Water Rationing $500 Discontinuation of 
Service 

Discontinuation of 
Service 

 
Drought surcharge rates are effective in Stages 3, 4 and 5. 
 
 
 
VI. Public Comment 
 
Customers will have multiple opportunities to comment on the provisions of the water 
shortage response plan. First, a draft plan will be will be available at the Mainland Water 
Office for customers to view. A notice will be included in customer water bill notifying 
them of such.  Also a draft plan will be published in Focus on Currituck and the County 
Website http://www.co.currituck.nc.us/ all subsequent revisions to the draft plan will be 
published at least 30 days prior to an adoption vote by Currituck County’s Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
 
VII. Variance Protocols 
 
Applications for water use variance requests are available from the County Office. All 
applications must be submitted to the County Water Department for review by the 
superintendent or his designee. A decision to approve or deny individual variance 
requests will be determined within two weeks of submittal after careful consideration of 
the following criteria: impact on water demand, expected duration, alternative source 
options, social and economic importance, purpose (i.e. necessary use of drinking water) 
and the prevention of structural damage. 
 
 
 

NC Division of Water Resources 
http://www.ncwater.org 

4 

85



Southern Outer Banks Water-Water Shortage Response Plan 

VIII. Effectiveness 
 
The effectiveness of the Southern Outer Banks Water shortage response plan will be 
determined by comparing the stated water conservation goals with observed water use 
reduction data. Other factors to be considered include frequency of plan activation, any 
problem periods without activation, total number of violation citations, desired reductions 
attained and evaluation of demand reductions compared to the previous year’s 
seasonal data. 
 
 
IX. Revision 
 
The water shortage response plan will be reviewed and revised as needed to adapt to 
new circumstances affecting water supply and demand, following implementation of 
emergency restrictions, and at a minimum of every five years in conjunction with the 
updating of our Local Water Supply Plan. Further, a water shortage response planning 
work group will review procedures following each emergency or rationing stage to 
recommend any necessary improvements to the plan to Currituck County’s Board of 
Commissioners. The Southern Outer Banks Water Superintendent is responsible for 
initiating all subsequent revisions. 

NC Division of Water Resources 
http://www.ncwater.org 

5 

86



87



 
 
 
 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, 
North Carolina during its regularly scheduled meeting held 
on February 18, 2013 authorized the following, pursuant to 
GS 160A and 270(b) that the property listed below be 
disposed of by transferring to another governmental agency 
or selling by GovDeals auction. 
 
Asset# Description    Serial# 
 
  1986 Chevrolet Truck 1GCH034J6GF35323   
7225  1995 Chevrolet SUV  1GNEK13K5SJ363062   
5260  2000 Ford Crown Vic  2FAFP71WOYX137380 
5621  2002 Dodge Durango   1B4HS38N12F171089 
5688  2003 Ford Van   1FMRE11283HB47201   
6094  2006 Ford Crown Vic  2FAHP71W76X119013 
6090  2005 Kodiak ATV  5Y4AJ15YX5A008718 
6091  2005 Kodiak ATV  5Y4AJ15Y55A009193 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of 
Commissioners of County of Currituck reserves the right to 
reject any and all bids.  
 
 
ADOPTED, this    day of  , 2013. 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
S Paul O’Neal  
Currituck County Board of      
Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
Clerk to the Board 

88



Number 2013080

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

51848-591001 CCMS HVAC/Griggs Gym HVAC 146,000$                    
51848-598002 Central Chiller Replacement 150,000$                    
51380-481000 Lottery Funds 296,000$                  

296,000$                    296,000$                  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 18th day of February, 2013, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

School Construction Fund (51848) - Increase appropriations to record approval from the NC 
Department of Public Instruction to use lottery funds for the HVAC and Chiller replacements.

Net Budget Effect: School Construction Fund (51) - Increased by $296,000.

89

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013081

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

12541-587050 T T - County Govt Construction Fund 120,000$                    
12390-499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 120,000$                  

120,000$                    120,000$                  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 18th day of February, 2013, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Fire Services Fund (12) - Transfer funds to the County Governmental Facilities Construction fund for 
an addition to the Crawford Fire Station.  

Net Budget Effect: Fire Services Fund (12) - Increased by $12,000.

90

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013082

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10790-532000 Supplies 700$                           
10790-516000 Maintenance & Repair 700$                         

700$                           700$                         

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 18th day of February, 2013, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Library (10790) - Transfer funds to purchase Office 2010 for the staff computers in the Barco and 
Corolla libraries.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

91

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013083

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10530-553000 Dues and Subscriptions 200$                           
10530-526000 Advertising 200$                         
10530-536000 Uniforms 4,500$                        
10530-514500 Training and Education 4,500$                      

4,700$                        4,700$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 18th day of February, 2013, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Emergency Medical Services (10530) - To transfer funds for increases in dues and subscriptions and 
for uniforms for new hires for the remainder of this fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

92

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013084

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10752-519004 ST/CO SPEC ASSISTANCE 12,000$                      
10752-519005 STATE FOSTER CARE 12,000$                    
10752-519600 DAYCARE 217,681$                    
10760-585000 DONATIONS 7,733$                        
10760-585001 DONATIONS-CURR KIDS 1,000$                        
10330-432800 DAYCARE 217,681$                  
10330-43100 DSS ADMIN 14,759$                    
10380-487000 DONATIONS 1,114$                      
10380-487001 DONATIONS CURR KIDS 2,000$                      
10390-499900 FUND APPROPRIATE BLANCE 9,140$                        

247,554$                    247,554$                  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 18th day of February, 2013, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $226,414.

PUBLIC ASSISTANCE (752) - Adjust to accommodate the amount of Special Assistance clients 
receiving benefits; Reflect State Funding Authorizations for the Daycare program.  COUNTY 
ASSISTANCE (760)-Adjust to reflect the actual amount of donated funds received for Donations and 
Currituck Kids.  REVENUE (330)-Adjust to the State Funding Authorizations for DSS Admin and 
Daycare funds.

93

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013085

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10531-545000 Contracted Services 100$                         
10531-514500 Training & Education 100$                           

100$                           100$                         

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 18th day of February, 2013, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Emergency Management (10531) - Transfer funds for registration fee for NCEMA Spring conference.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

94

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013086

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10750-590000 Capital Outlay 6,775$                        
10390-499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 6,775$                      

6,775$                        6,775$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 18th day of February, 2013, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Social Services (10750) - Increase appropriations to replace HVAC system in Social Services.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $6,775.

95

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013087

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

66868-545000 Contracted Services 10,000$                    
66868-553000 Dues & Subscriptions 2,000$                      
66868-533800 Chemicals 2,000$                      
66868-531400 Equipment Fuel 2,500$                      
66868-513000 Utilities 2,000$                      
66868-516000 Repairs & Maintenance 2,000$                      
66868-514000 Travel 1,500$                      
66868-532000 Supplies 5,500$                        
66868-531000 Gas, Oil, etc 8,000$                        
66868-590000 Capital Outlay 8,500$                        

22,000$                      22,000$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 18th day of February, 2013, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Southern Outer Banks Water System (66868) - Transfer funds for operations for the remainder of this 
fiscal year and to replace one of the automatic meter readers that is not functioning.

Net Budget Effect: Southern Outer Banks Water System Fund (66) - No change.

96

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013088

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

65858-545000 Contracted Services 8,000$                        
65858-561000 Professional Services 8,000$                      

8,000$                        8,000$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 18th day of February, 2013, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Moyock Commons Sewer System (65858) - Transfer funds for additional sewer pumping to take the 
existing Moyock Commons Plant offline.

Net Budget Effect: Moyock Commons Sewer Fund (65) - No change.

97

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013089

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10510-516200 Vehicle Maintenance 18,526$                      
10380-484001 Insurance Recovery 18,526$                    

18,526$                      18,526$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 18th day of February, 2013, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Sheriff (10510) - Increase appropriations to record insurance proceeds to repair Sheriff vehicles.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $18,526.

98

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013090

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10440-502000 Salaries - Regular 13,000$                      
10440-505000 FICA 995$                           
10440-506000 Health Insurance 1,793$                        
10440-507000 Retirement 1,530$                        
10440-532000 Supplies 2,500$                        
10440-535000 Safekeeping Fees 700$                         
10350-468000 Sale of Fixed Assets 1,800$                      
10480-502000 Salaries - Regular 13,000$                    
10480-505000 FICA 995$                         
10480-506000 Health Insurance 1,793$                      
10480-507000 Retirement 1,530$                      

19,818$                      19,818$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 18th day of February, 2013, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Finance; Register of Deeds (10440;10480) - Transfer funds from the Register of Deeds Department to 
the Finance Department to reclassify a Deputy Register of Deeds to an Accounting Clerk I and an 
Accounting Clerk I to an Accounting Clerk II and for initial set-up equipment for the additional Finance 
position.  

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $1,800.

99

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013091

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10460-592000 Courthouse Projects 77,963$                      
10380-484001 Insurance Recovery 77,963$                    

77,963$                      77,963$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 18th day of February, 2013, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Public Works (10460) - Increase appropriations to record funds received for insurance recovery from 
Hurricane damage to Public Buildings.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $77,963.

100

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners, North Carolina that 
pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following 
capital project ordinance is hereby adopted: 
 
 
SECTION 1. The project authorized is an addition to the Crawford Fire Department in 
Shawboro, North Carolina. 
 
 
SECTION 2. The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

 

    Crawford Fire Department renovations 120,000$         

120,000$          
 

SECTION 3. The following revenues are available to complete this project: 
 

Transfer from Fire Services Fund 120,000$          

120,000$          

 
 
SECTION 4. The Finance Director is hereby directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the 
financial status of each project element delineated in Section 2 above. 
 
 
SECTION 5.  SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
 

The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within the fund as 
contained herein under the following conditions: 
 
a. He may transfer amounts between object line items within the fund up to 

One Thousand dollars ($1,000). 
 
 
 
 

SECTION 6.  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 
 

The County Manager is hereby authorized to execute contractual documents under the 
following conditions: 
 
a. He may execute contracts for construction or repair projects which do not 

require formal competitive bid procedures. 
 

b. He may execute contracts for (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies, and 

101



materials, or equipment which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations; (2) 
leases of personal property for a duration of one year or less and within budgeted 
departmental appropriations; and (3) services which are within budgeted departmental 
appropriations. 
 

c. He may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of real property, which are of a 
duration of one year or less which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations. 

 
 

SECTION 7.  USE OF BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 

The Budget Officer and the Finance Director shall use this capital project ordinance for 
administration of the budget and for the accounting system. 

 
 
ADOPTED this 18th day of February, 2013. 
 
 
 S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 

Board of Commissioners 
 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 

 

 

102


	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Public Hearing and Action:
	12-26 Case Analysis

	Award Bid for Maple Park Expansion Phase 1 and authorize County Manager to sign Contract
	Consideration of License Agreement
	Appointment to Tourism Board
	Appointment to Recreation Board
	Appointment to Board of Adjustment
	Approval of Resolution supporting continued funding for the Museum of the Albemarle
	Department of Social Service request to purge certain files
	Approval of January 22 and February 4, 2013, Minutes
	January 22 Minutes
	February 4 Minutes

	Resolution Approving Water Shortage Response Plan
	Resolution
	Water Plan

	Approval of Quarterly Fiscal Monitoring Report for East Carolina Behavioral Health
	Resolution to declare Sheriff vehicles as surplus
	Budget Amendments
	Project Ordinance - Crawford Fire Station Addition
	boc-agenda-packet-13feb18-website.pdf
	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Public Hearing and Action:
	12-26 Case Analysis

	Award Bid for Maple Park Expansion Phase 1 and authorize County Manager to sign Contract
	Consideration of License Agreement
	Appointment to Tourism Board
	Appointment to Recreation Board
	Appointment to Board of Adjustment
	Approval of Resolution supporting continued funding for the Museum of the Albemarle
	Department of Social Service request to purge certain files
	Approval of January 22 and February 4, 2013, Minutes
	January 22 Minutes
	February 4 Minutes

	Resolution Approving Water Shortage Response Plan
	Water Plan

	Approval of Quarterly Fiscal Monitoring Report for East Carolina Behavioral Health
	Resolution to declare Sheriff vehicles as surplus
	Budget Amendments
	Project Ordinance - Crawford Fire Station Addition

	boc-agenda-13feb18.pdf
	REVISED
	Currituck County Board of Commissioners Agenda  Historic Currituck County Courthouse

	boc-agenda-13feb18.pdf
	REVISED
	Currituck County Board of Commissioners Agenda  Historic Currituck County Courthouse




